
 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, May 20th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the May 20th, 2024, Regular Meeting of The Lyman Select Board. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

EXCECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (C) Acquisition of real property 
 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS  
a. Historical Society Presents - Information on the Memorial Day Parade 

 
ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 

a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.  
Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others 

b. Mail   •Maine Lake Stewards    •Shenna Bellows 
 

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 4/16/2024 
b. Review / Approve meeting minutes 5/6/2024 

 

ITEM #4  SIGN WARRANTS  
a. Payroll Warrant #43 in the amount of $26,283.13 
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #44 (FY2024) in the amount of $171,991.82 

 

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any  
b. Discussion from 4-22-24 Workshop, updating agenda format, board bylaws, etc.  

 
ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  

a. Fire Chief – All Hands 
b. Treasurer – Expense Report 
c. Tax Collector – Monthly Report 
d. IT Committee – Report 
e. Bunganut Park Committee - Report 

 
ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 

a. Discuss Emergency Ordinance for FEMA Flood Plain Ordinance Amendments 
b. Discuss GMFR – Lawn repair from winter plowing 
c. Transfer Station – Proposal for Camera Equipment 
d. Committee Applicant – Comprehensive Plan Committee 
e. Survey results re: Annual Town Meeting 
f. Quote for Work Table for Bunganut Ticket Booth7 

 
 
OTHER 

ADJOURN 



ITEM #2: (b.) Mail







Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

April 16th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 5 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/ 

Selectboard members present: Jessica Picard, Amber Swett, Victoria Gavel 
Selectboard members absent: Rusty “Ralph” Blackington (Chair), Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others
No public comment.

b. Mail     •York County Sherrif

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 4/1/2024

Amber Swett – Motions to approve. Victoria Gavel seconds. Motion passes: 3-0-0

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #39 in the amount of $29,399.00

Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve. Amber Swett seconds. Motion passes: 3-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #40 (FY2024) in the amount of $51,381.77

Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve. Amber Swett seconds. Motion passes: 3-0-0
Discussion, Amber Swett states Municipal Solid Waste expenses were $9,380.89 and recycling
expenses were $475.65.

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any

No new updates
b. Discuss Bunganut Booth Repairs, updates if any, Review Quote for Electrical work and gravel

Lindsay Gagne – States the quote for the shed was sent to the insurance company and the Town
was reimbursed for the cost less the $1,000 deductible. There will need to be an electrical hookup
after the new shed is installed. In the agenda packet, there is a quote for $850 for all the electrical
work needed. After the shed is removed, we may need to level out the area and put gravel down for
the new shed. To move forward with the electrical quote, the board will need to approve funds from
Capital improvement Reserves.
Victoria Gavel – States she is willing to get gravel if it’s needed and will volunteer her time to help
with demoing the old shed. She has coordinated with the Road Commissioner who has agreed to
volunteer his time and use his excavator. She will haul the debris to the old recycling place on Jagger
Mill Road and will submit receipts for the cost for tonnage of debris.
Amber Swett – Motions to approve the quote from ETP Electricians for the amount of $850.00 to
come out of Capital Improvement Reserves.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0

c. Review/ Approve final draft personnel policy
There is some discussion regarding language on page 6 under section 3.1, gesture bullying, if the
phrase “glances that convey threatening message” could be removed. Consensus was that this

DRAFT
ITEM #3: (a.) Minutes

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

April 16th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 5 

language could be perceived in a variety of different ways, and it would be better to leave the 
general phrase as “Non-verbal threatening body language or gestures.” 
Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve the Town of Lyman Personnel Policy Handbook as written 
with the exception of the changes discussed that under section 3.1 to remove “glances that 
convey a threatening message” on page 6 from the gesture bullying segment.  
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0 

d. Review/ Approve Propane rate quotes
Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve the propane rate quote from Champagne at $1.90 per gallon
through June 30th, 2025.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0

e. Salt Shed repairs, review quotes and options
Lindsay Gagne – States after earlier discussions of the electrical panel corroding at the salt shed, we
got a few different quote options for the panel. One quote is for replacing the panel inside the
building with a like panel leaving it where it is. The other quote is replacing the panel but moving its
location to outside the building. There is a third quote to add lighting inside the salt shed along the
sides of the building rather than above up on the ceiling, because the ceiling height is so high that if
the lights needed to be switched out it would require a lift to access them. Putting the lights on the
side will make them more accessible if repairs or replacement are needed.
There is discussion if having lights on the sides rather than the ceiling, would this cause any issue
with being in the way of the loader. Lindsay will check with the Road Commissioner if that could be
an issue. Discussion regarding the panel, the concern with keeping the panel inside the salt shed is it
will likely corrode again in a matter of time. The board agrees there is likely more longevity with the
panel being moved outside the building and locks should be added on the panel.
Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve the ETP Electricians proposal to relocate the existing panel
with breakers to the outside of the salt shed for the sum of $2,100.00 to come out of Capital
Improvement Reserves.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0
Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve the ETP Electricians proposal of $3,500.00 to change out the
lights inside the salt shed, adding two on each side of the door in front and one on the center of
the back wall.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Fire Chief – All Hands – Report reviewed in agenda packet.
b. Treasurer – Expense Report – Report reviewed in agenda packet.
c. Tax Collector – Excise Report March, 2024 – Report reviewed in agenda packet
d. Eco Maine Rep – Recycling info and training

Amber Swett – States she had reached out to Eco Maine and coordinated a meeting with the
Transfer Station attendants to discuss updates to recycling and waste, including items that can or
can’t be recycled. There is an ECO ME app that can be downloaded on your phone where you can
input any type of item and the app will tell you if it can be recycled. The app is called recylopedia.

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Re-Appointment for Bunganut Park Committee Members

Lindsay Gagne – States the committee is an ad hoc committee and per the charter were appointed
for one year, however they can be re-appointed for one additional year.
Amber Swett – States she will abstain from the re-appointment for Michelle Feliccitti.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

April 16th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 5 

Discussion, because there are only three board members present, with Amber’s abstention, they 
would have to delay Michelle’s re-appointment until the next meeting but will continue with the 
other committee members.   
Victoria Gavel – Motions to appoint Holly Hart to the Bunganut Park Ad Hoc Committee for a term 
ending April 18th, 2025.  
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0 
Victoria Gavel – Motions to appoint Holly Wooldridge to the Bunganut Park Ad Hoc Committee for 
a term ending April 18th, 2025.  
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0 
Victoria Gavel – Motions to appoint Kevin Veilleux to the Bunganut Park Ad Hoc Committee for a 
term ending April 18th, 2025.  
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0 
Victoria Gavel – Motions to appoint Karen Kane to the Bunganut Park Ad Hoc Committee for a 
term ending April 18th, 2025.  
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0 
Victoria Gavel – Motions to appoint Liz Mitchell to the Bunganut Park Ad Hoc Committee for a 
term ending April 18th, 2025.  
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0 

b. Committee Application – Cemetery Committee
Amber Swett – Motions to appoint Patricia Ricker to the Cemetery Committee.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0

c. Appointment Interim Code Enforcement Officer, Building Inspector & Plumbing Inspector
Lindsay Gagne – States there is another CEO that is willing to help with permits and inspections in
the interim until we have a full-time CEO. Updates to the interviewing process; there were many
applicants for the position od Administrative Clerk; interviews have been conducted and currently
we’re reviewing the selection process. To avoid short staffing the front counter, we’ve been working
with the temp CEO’s until internal hire for the CEO Department can transition over.
Victoria Gavel – Motions to appoint James Allaire as the interim building inspector effective April
16th, 2024.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0
Victoria Gavel – Motions to appoint James Allaire as the interim plumbing inspector effective April
16th, 2024.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0
Victoria Gavel – Motions to appoint James Allaire as the interim code enforcement officer
effective April 16th, 2024.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0

d. Review/ Approve Pole Permit
Amber Swett – Motions to approve the pole permit for the intersection of Shaker Hill Road and
Brock Road.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-0

e. Schedule Public Hearing for Town Meeting Warrant
Lindsay Gagne – States the warrant is being drafted. During the budget workshops we had discussed
doing a minor amendment to the charter to remove the Board of Assessment Review and default
appeals to the County, however in reaching out to Town Council, it was recommended this item
would likely need to be voted on by secret ballot and we could do that for the November Election.
Unless the board has any other non-budget items to add to the warrant, there should be a public
hearing scheduled, which the draft will be ready before then.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

April 16th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 5 

Discussion regarding scheduling a public hearing. The board will hold a public hearing on May 6th at 
6:00pm located at the Town Hall before their regular meeting session.  

Discussion regarding putting to the voters in November a referendum question asking if they do or 
do not favor services providing aerial imagery for the assessor. This would not be appropriating 
funds, but rather getting voters to vote on whether or not they would want such services available 
to the Town.  

f. Review/Sign RSU #57 notice of June election.
Victoria Gavel – Motion to accept the warrant and notice of election calling Regional School Unit
Number 57 Budget Validation Referendum and notice of election on Tuesday June 11th 2024
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion Passes: 3-0-0

EXCECUTIVE SESSION 
None  

OTHER 

Victoria Gavel – States while doing the shed removal at Bunganut, she will get the broken grills out of the park as well 
and haul them at the same time. She asks about candidate’s Nite and how to submit questions to the candidates and 
asks about getting the moderator for Town meeting.  

Lindsay Gagne – States questions can be submitted to the Town Manager email or office and then they are passed to 
the moderator for Candidates Nite. The moderator for Town Meeting is voted on at Town Meeting. Typically, we reach 
out to those who we generally work with and ask if they are available, but if they are not, then we would look for 
another moderator.  

Michelle Felicetti – States the Bunganut Park Committee has cancelled their clean up day in May because of the 
damages from the last storm. The trees that fell down at the park are very large and the damage will need to be cleaned 
up before they schedule a community event.  

Lindsay Gagne – Provides an update with the storm damages and FEMA funding. After doing the assessment we are 
aware of the debris and trees that are down. The FEMA funding is not a guarantee, as we have not received 
confirmation that we qualify. In the event we don’t qualify we would still continue to get the clean up done, but the 
reason the debris has been left is so we can take pictures and videos as part of our FEMA report.  

ADJOURN 

Amber Swett – Motions to adjourn. Victoria Gavel seconds. Motion passes: 3-0-0 DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

April 16th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 5 of 5 

__________________________________________ 
Rusty “Ralph” Blackington  

__________________________________________ 
Thomas Hatch  

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_____________________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 5 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting date April 16th, 2024 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

May 6th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 4 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/ 

Selectboard members present: Rusty “Ralph” Blackington (Chair), Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair), Jessica Picard, 
Victoria Gavel 
Selectboard members absent: Amber Swett 

PUBLIC HEARING 
To present information regarding the Annual Town Meeting Warrant 
The public hearing is opened at 6:00pm. There is no public comment. The Public Hearing is closed at 6:05pm 

REGULAR SELECT BOARD MEETING 

EXCECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (A) Discussion with Town Manager regarding personnel matters
Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to go into executive session per 1 M.R.S.A §405(A) Discussion with Town Manager
regarding personnel matters.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion.
Motion passes: 3-1-0 (Thomas Hatch, Ralph Blackington, Jessica Picard in favor; Victoria Gavel opposed).

Jessica Picard – Motions to come out of executive session. Victoria Gavel seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
None 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others
Joe Wagner – States he spoke with the Babe Ruth Little League and verified they are okay with not
using Chadbourne Field.
Michelle Feliccitti – States the Bunganut Park Committee has delayed their Park Clean Up day due
to the damage caused by the April storm. They plan to reschedule possibly for the Fall. They did
another walkabout and determined there are some trees that need to be thinned out. The field by
the water is at water level which is why the field is always so marshy. There is a culvert at one of the
entrances where it seems water is overflowing from and washing out the parking area. They are
working on developing short-term and long-term goals for the park. Some ideas include setting up a
sledding hill for the winter, revamping the trail systems, cleaning up the Pines and offering more
rental space, converting some of the old shacks into outhouses, cleaning up the volleyball court and
renting out to leagues. They have found there are some leagues in the local area that are looking for
a volleyball court to rent.
Jessica Picard – Thanks the Lyman Snowmobile Club for donating the park benches on the field side.
She suggests looking into treating the field for ticks.

b. Mail   •York County Sheriff’s March Report   •York County Sheriff’s Bulletin
Reviewed in agenda packet.

DRAFT
ITEM #3: (b.) Minutes

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

May 6th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 4 

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve 4-16-24 meeting minutes

Agenda item tabled till next meeting.

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #41 in the amount of $28,094.15

Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve. Jessica Picard seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #42 (FY2024) in the amount of $772,906.61

Jessica Picard – Motions to approve. Thomas Hatch seconds. Motion passes: 3-0-1 (Thoams Hatch,
Ralph Blackington, Jessica Picard in favor; Victoria Gavel abstains, she was reimbursed for the
debris disposal of the Bunganut Ticket Booth on the warrant).
Jessica Picard – States for discussion some of the larger items include RSU #57 payment and due to
the damage cause by the April Storm, there has been work done for emergency tree removal and
road work that was included in the Report sent to FEMA.

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any

No updates at this time.

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Fire Chief – All Hands – Reviewed in Agenda Packet.
b. Treasurer – Expense Report – Reviewed in Agenda packet.
c. Town Managers Report

Lindsay Gagne – States the Kennebunk Pond landscape improvements have been keeping on
schedule. The hardscape work will be completed soon by mid-May and the gate will be installed
around the same time. The plantings will be planted in June. Updates have been posted on the
webpage. DEP was contacted for a permit by rule to remove the tree in the boat launch area. FEMA
funding has been validated to move on to the next steps. There is still some work to be done before
we can confirm emergency funding will be granted. There will be more assessment of Bunganut
Park, and we’ve been getting some quotes from vendors to get going on removing the debris before
the Park is scheduled to open. The old ticket booth has been removed and the new one is scheduled
for delivery on May 8th. The IT committee has reported they are looking into getting an internet
service at the park. The Ordinance Review Committee has collected enough signatures to move their
amendments to the voters. They will start scheduling public hearings soon. Also, a new pay portal
has been added to the Website to collect payments for Real Estate and Personal Property taxes.
Victoria Gavel – Inquires about the donations for the cemetery committee.
Lindsay Gagne – States they have not collected enough money as of yet, but we are still collecting
donations.

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Snowmobile & ATV club – discussion regarding tenancy at will for ATV club on Map2, Lot 35

Brian Dulong – States they would like to allow the ATV club to use their Snowmobile Club building
on Williams Road for trainings and meetings.
Greg Robert – States he is with the ATV club, and they have been looking for another place for their
meetings. They would not use the trail systems and would conduct mostly meetings and safety
training. They would provide porta potties for restroom facilities for their club meetings. They can
provide proof of liability insurance. They have had up to twenty-five members in attendance at their
meetings in the past and this building would be suitable for that size. He is looking to see if the

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

May 6th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 4 

board would be agreeable to them using the building before the ATV club votes to move forward 
with it.  
Thomas Hatch – Asks if the code enforcement office might want to do any inspections on the 
building and electrical. Lindsay will reach out to the CEO.  
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to allow the ATV Club to utilize the property located at 265 
Williams Road with them providing the Town with a certificate of liability insurance.  
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion  
Motion passes: 4-0-0 

b. Re-Appointment for Bunganut Park Committee Member
Jessica Picard – Motions to appoint Michelle Feliccitti to the Bunganut Park Ad Hoc Committee for
a term ending April 18th, 2025.
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion Passes: 4-0-0

c. Committee Application – Bunganut Park Committee
Jessica Picard – Motions to appoint Melissa Sulloway to the Bunganut Park Ad Hoc Committee for
a term ending April 18th, 2025.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

d. Appointment Code Enforcement Officer, Building Inspector & Plumbing Inspector, 911 Addressing
Agent
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Rebekah Thomson as the Code Enforcement Officer until June
30th, 2024
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes 4-0-0
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Rebekah Thomson as the 911 Addressing Agent until June
30th, 2024
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes 4-0-0
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Rebekah Thomson as the Building Inspector until June 30th,
2024
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes 4-0-0
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Rebekah Thomson as the Plumbing Inspector until June 30th,
2024
Ralph Blackington – Seconds the motion. Motion passes 4-0-0

e. Appointment Administrative Clerk
Jessica Picard – Motions to appoint Janice Auger as the Administrative Clerk until June 30th, 2024
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

f. Review/ Approve warrant for Annual Town Meeting
Michelle Feliccitti – States the Comprehensive Plan Committee met with SMPDHC again and
determined the LD1976 is likely to pass requiring all municipalities to revamp their growth plans and
the cost for SMPDC to assist would be approximately $10,000 per year.
Lindsay Gagne – States the board could modify the warrant articles or do a Special Town Meeting at
a later time to appropriate any funding needed. Currently Elections supplies have been budgeted for
$14,000 and this year, we have only used approximately $3,500. The recommendation would be to
move some funds out of the Elections Supply line to the Comprehensive Plan Committee if they
needed it.
After some discussion, the board agrees to leave the warrant as it is written, and if needed will
consider holding a special town meeting.
Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve the Annual Town Meeting Warrant as it is written.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

May 6th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 4 

g. Review/ Approve Pole Permit
Jessica Picard – Motions to approve the pole permit dated March 18th, 2024, for intersection of
Swan Shores Drive and Clarks Woods Road.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes :4-0-0
Note: The original motion was for a pole permit already previously approved, and later under the
agenda item “other” was corrected.

h. Field Use Request Form for Chadbourne Field – Massabesic Little League
Jessica Picard – Motions to approve the field use request form for the Massabesic Little League to
use Chadborne Field.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

i. Discussion from 4-22-24 Workshop, updating agenda format, board bylaws, etc.
Victoria Gavel – Motions to table this agenda item
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion Passes: 4-0-0

OTHER 

Victoria Gavel – Suggests having a workshop to discuss any potential hot-topic items for the upcoming Town Meeting. 
There is some discussion that it is beneficial having the Treasurer at the meetings to help answer questions.  

Thomas Hatch – States he has been addressed by some residents that there are public officials questioning the work 
being done at Kennebunk Pond and he would encourage them to inquire with the Town Manager for updates before 
making assumptions.  

ADJOURN 

Jessica Picard – Motions to adjourn. Ralph Blackington seconds. Motion Passes: 4-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Rusty “Ralph” Blackington  

__________________________________________ 
Thomas Hatch  

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_____________________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 4 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting date May 6th, 2024 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne

DRAFT



ITEM #4: (a.) Payroll Warrant





ITEM #4: (b.) AP Warrant



















ITEM #5: (b.) Discussion / Recommendations from workshop on 4/22/24









ITEM #6: (a.) GMFR Report







E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
0
1
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
5
8
6
,8

6
5
.0

0
1
0
0
,7

5
5
.0

0
6
8
7
,6

2
0
.0

0
5
4
7
,7

6
4
.7

6
0
.0

0
1
3
9
,8

5
5
.2

4

  
  

1
1

 -
 T

O
W

N
 H

A
L
L

3
3

7
,9

1
3

.0
0

1
0

7
,0

3
4

.0
0

4
4

4
,9

4
7

.0
0

3
8

3
,2

0
4

.5
7

0
.0

0
6

1
,7

4
2

.4
3

  
  

  
  
1
0
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
3
3
7
,9

1
3
.0

0
1
0
7
,0

3
4
.0

0
4
4
4
,9

4
7
.0

0
3
8
3
,2

0
4
.5

7
0
.0

0
6
1
,7

4
2
.4

3

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
0
1
 -

 T
O

W
N

 M
G

R
0
.0

0
9
1
,8

5
5
.0

0
9
1
,8

5
5
.0

0
7
7
,8

6
7
.2

6
0
.0

0
1
3
,9

8
7
.7

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
0
3
 -

 H
R
 &

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

6
2
,5

3
4
.0

0
6
,0

3
0
.0

0
6
8
,5

6
4
.0

0
5
7
,0

5
9
.9

0
0
.0

0
1
1
,5

0
4
.1

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
0
5
 -

 T
O

W
N

 C
LE

R
K
/T

5
5
,7

5
1
.0

0
9
,1

4
9
.0

0
6
4
,9

0
0
.0

0
5
5
,3

8
3
.1

2
0
.0

0
9
,5

1
6
.8

8

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
0
6
 -

 A
D

M
IN

 C
LE

R
K

5
1
,5

7
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
1
,5

7
8
.0

0
2
8
,6

5
6
.2

8
0
.0

0
2
2
,9

2
1
.7

2

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
1
5
 -

 A
S
S
E
S
S
O

R
7
5
,7

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
5
,7

5
0
.0

0
6
7
,0

0
9
.5

8
0
.0

0
8
,7

4
0
.4

2

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
4
1
 -

 C
E
O

6
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
9
,4

0
8
.6

6
0
.0

0
5
,5

9
1
.3

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
4
2
 -

 C
E
O

 C
LE

R
K

2
7
,3

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
7
,3

0
0
.0

0
2
2
,7

6
9
.2

5
0
.0

0
4
,5

3
0
.7

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
4
3
 -

 E
LE

C
T
R
IC

IA
N

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
5
,0

5
0
.5

2
0
.0

0
-1

5
,0

5
0
.5

2

  
  

1
3

 -
 E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

S
1

4
,8

1
8

.0
0

-5
,8

0
0

.0
0

9
,0

1
8

.0
0

3
,9

1
4

.1
0

0
.0

0
5

,1
0

3
.9

0

  
  

  
  
1
0
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
1
4
,8

1
8
.0

0
-5

,8
0
0
.0

0
9
,0

1
8
.0

0
3
,9

1
4
.1

0
0
.0

0
5
,1

0
3
.9

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
8
2
 -

 B
A
LL

O
T
 C

LE
R
K

8
,4

7
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
8
,4

7
8
.0

0
3
,6

2
8
.7

2
0
.0

0
4
,8

4
9
.2

8

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
8
3
 -

 T
M

 M
O

D
E
R
A
T
O

R
3
4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
4
0
.0

0
1
7
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
7
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
8
4
 -

 R
E
G

IS
T
R
A
R

6
,0

0
0
.0

0
-5

,8
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
1
1
5
.3

8
0
.0

0
8
4
.6

2

  
  

1
7

 -
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

3
,5

8
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

,5
8

0
.0

0
3

,7
1

8
.3

9
0

.0
0

-1
3

8
.3

9

  
  

  
  
1
0
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
3
,5

8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,5

8
0
.0

0
3
,7

1
8
.3

9
0
.0

0
-1

3
8
.3

9

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
4
7
 -

 P
B

3
,5

8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,5

8
0
.0

0
3
,7

1
8
.3

9
0
.0

0
-1

3
8
.3

9

  
  

1
8

 -
 A

P
P

E
A

L
S

 B
D

3
7

3
.0

0
0

.0
0

3
7

3
.0

0
7

4
.2

8
0

.0
0

2
9

8
.7

2

  
  

  
  
1
0
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
3
7
3
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
7
3
.0

0
7
4
.2

8
0
.0

0
2
9
8
.7

2

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
4
8
 -

 A
P
P
E
A
LS

 B
O

A
R

3
7
3
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
7
3
.0

0
7
4
.2

8
0
.0

0
2
9
8
.7

2

  
  

2
1

 -
 R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

3
,9

6
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

,9
6

0
.0

0
3

,8
3

4
.2

6
0

.0
0

1
2

5
.7

4

  
  

  
  
1
0
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
3
,9

6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,9

6
0
.0

0
3
,8

3
4
.2

6
0
.0

0
1
2
5
.7

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
2
7
 -

 R
E
C
 D

IR
E
C
T

3
,9

6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,9

6
0
.0

0
3
,8

3
4
.2

6
0
.0

0
1
2
5
.7

4

  
  

3
1

 -
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 S

T
A

1
2

4
,1

2
1

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

2
4

,1
2

1
.0

0
9

8
,0

5
1

.2
7

0
.0

0
2

6
,0

6
9

.7
3

  
  

  
  
1
0
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
1
2
4
,1

2
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
4
,1

2
1
.0

0
9
8
,0

5
1
.2

7
0
.0

0
2
6
,0

6
9
.7

3

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
3
1
 -

 T
R
F
 S

T
A
T
IO

N
1
2
3
,1

2
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
3
,1

2
1
.0

0
9
8
,0

5
1
.2

7
0
.0

0
2
5
,0

6
9
.7

3

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
3
2
 -

 E
C
O

 M
E
 R

E
P

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

5
1

 -
 R

O
A

D
S

3
7

,9
0

5
.0

0
0

.0
0

3
7

,9
0

5
.0

0
3

3
,5

3
4

.0
0

0
.0

0
4

,3
7

1
.0

0

  
  

  
  
1
0
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
3
7
,9

0
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
7
,9

0
5
.0

0
3
3
,5

3
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,3

7
1
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
5
1
 -

 R
D

 C
O

M
M

3
7
,9

0
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
7
,9

0
5
.0

0
3
3
,5

3
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,3

7
1
.0

0

  
  

7
1

 -
 G

A
3

,3
9

4
.0

0
0

.0
0

3
,3

9
4

.0
0

1
,6

9
7

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

,6
9

7
.0

0

  
  

  
  
1
0
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
3
,3

9
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,3

9
4
.0

0
1
,6

9
7
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,6

9
7
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
7
1
 -

 G
A
 D

IR
E
C
T

3
,3

9
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,3

9
4
.0

0
1
,6

9
7
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,6

9
7
.0

0

  
  

7
2

 -
 A

C
O

7
,4

5
8

.0
0

0
.0

0
7

,4
5

8
.0

0
6

,5
9

7
.5

5
0

.0
0

8
6

0
.4

5

  
  

  
  
1
0
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
7
,4

5
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
,4

5
8
.0

0
6
,5

9
7
.5

5
0
.0

0
8
6
0
.4

5

ITEM #6: (b.) Expense Report



E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 2

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
0
1
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
 C

O
N

T
'D

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
7
5
 -

 A
C
O

7
,4

5
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
,4

5
8
.0

0
6
,5

9
7
.5

5
0
.0

0
8
6
0
.4

5

  
  

9
9

 -
 N

O
T

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

5
3

,3
4

3
.0

0
-4

7
9

.0
0

5
2

,8
6

4
.0

0
1

3
,1

3
9

.3
4

0
.0

0
3

9
,7

2
4

.6
6

  
  

  
  
1
0
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
3
3
,9

7
0
.0

0
-4

7
9
.0

0
3
3
,4

9
1
.0

0
1
3
,1

3
9
.3

4
0
.0

0
2
0
,3

5
1
.6

6

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
7
9
 -

 H
E
A
LT

H
 O

F
F
IC

4
5
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
5
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
5
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
9
1
 -

 E
X
T
R
A
 T

IM
E

7
,5

0
0
.0

0
-4

7
9
.0

0
7
,0

2
1
.0

0
1
,4

0
4
.3

4
0
.0

0
5
,6

1
6
.6

6

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
9
9
 -

 S
E
LE

C
T
 B

O
A
R
D

2
6
,0

1
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
6
,0

1
5
.0

0
1
1
,7

3
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
4
,2

8
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

1
9
,3

7
3
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
9
,3

7
3
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
9
,3

7
3
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
9
7
 -

 V
O

T
E
D

 M
O

R
E

1
9
,3

7
3
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
9
,3

7
3
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
9
,3

7
3
.0

0

1
0
2
 -

 B
E
N

E
F
IT

S
2
6
6
,3

4
7
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
6
6
,3

4
7
.0

0
1
8
0
,1

5
0
.3

8
0
.0

0
8
6
,1

9
6
.6

2

  
  

1
1

 -
 T

O
W

N
 H

A
L
L

1
1

,4
1

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
1

,4
1

0
.0

0
5

,5
6

8
.0

0
0

.0
0

5
,8

4
2

.0
0

  
  

  
  
2
0
 -

 B
E
N

E
F
IT

S
1
1
,4

1
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
1
,4

1
0
.0

0
5
,5

6
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,8

4
2
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
8
0
 -

 T
R
A
IN

IN
G

9
,5

1
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
,5

1
5
.0

0
4
,4

7
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

4
3
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
9
0
 -

 M
E
M

B
 &

 D
U

E
S

1
,8

9
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,8

9
5
.0

0
1
,0

9
6
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
9
9
.0

0

  
  

1
3

 -
 E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

S
1

2
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

2
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
2

0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
2
0
 -

 B
E
N

E
F
IT

S
1
2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
8
0
 -

 T
R
A
IN

IN
G

1
2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0

  
  

3
1

 -
 T

R
A

N
F
E

R
 S

T
A

T
5

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
5

0
0

.0
0

4
6

1
.8

5
0

.0
0

3
8

.1
5

  
  

  
  
2
0
 -

 B
E
N

E
F
IT

S
5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
4
6
1
.8

5
0
.0

0
3
8
.1

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
8
0
 -

 T
R
A
IN

IN
G

5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
4
6
1
.8

5
0
.0

0
3
8
.1

5

  
  

9
9

 -
 N

O
T

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

2
5

4
,3

1
7

.0
0

0
.0

0
2

5
4

,3
1

7
.0

0
1

7
4

,1
2

0
.5

3
0

.0
0

8
0

,1
9

6
.4

7

  
  

  
  
2
0
 -

 B
E
N

E
F
IT

S
2
5
4
,3

1
7
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
5
4
,3

1
7
.0

0
1
7
4
,1

2
0
.5

3
0
.0

0
8
0
,1

9
6
.4

7

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
0
1
 -

 F
IC

A
5
1
,1

9
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
1
,1

9
9
.0

0
4
3
,2

3
8
.4

4
0
.0

0
7
,9

6
0
.5

6

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
1
0
 -

 H
E
A
LT

H
1
5
1
,8

8
7
.0

0
-2

5
0
.0

0
1
5
1
,6

3
7
.0

0
9
5
,9

2
0
.3

5
0
.0

0
5
5
,7

1
6
.6

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
1
1
 -

 D
E
N

T
A
L

4
,4

1
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,4

1
4
.0

0
3
,4

7
1
.4

1
0
.0

0
9
4
2
.5

9

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
1
4
 -

 L
IF

E
 N

O
 M

E
D

1
2
0
.0

0
2
5
0
.0

0
3
7
0
.0

0
3
4
7
.5

5
0
.0

0
2
2
.4

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
3
0
 -

 4
5
7
B
 E

R
 M

A
T
C

1
2
,6

1
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
,6

1
4
.0

0
1
0
,2

8
5
.3

6
0
.0

0
2
,3

2
8
.6

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
3
1
 -

 M
P
E
R
S
 E

R
2
9
,5

8
3
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
9
,5

8
3
.0

0
2
0
,8

5
7
.4

2
0
.0

0
8
,7

2
5
.5

8

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
5
0
 -

 P
T
O

 B
U

Y
O

U
T

4
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,5

0
0
.0

0

1
0
7
 -

 C
IT

IZ
E
N

S
 P

T
0
.0

0
6
0
,2

1
7
.0

0
6
0
,2

1
7
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
0
,2

1
7
.0

0

  
  

1
3

 -
 E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

S
0

.0
0

6
0

,2
1

7
.0

0
6

0
,2

1
7

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

6
0

,2
1

7
.0

0

  
  

  
  
1
0
 -

 S
A
LA

R
IE

S
0
.0

0
2
6
,8

3
2
.0

0
2
6
,8

3
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
6
,8

3
2
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
1
8
1
 -

 T
O

W
N

 C
LE

R
K

0
.0

0
2
6
,8

3
2
.0

0
2
6
,8

3
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
6
,8

3
2
.0

0

  
  

  
  
2
0
 -

 B
E
N

E
F
IT

S
0
.0

0
3
3
,3

8
5
.0

0
3
3
,3

8
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
3
,3

8
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
0
1
 -

 F
IC

A
0
.0

0
2
,0

5
2
.6

5
2
,0

5
2
.6

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,0

5
2
.6

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
1
0
 -

 H
E
A
LT

H
0
.0

0
2
8
,0

9
7
.3

9
2
8
,0

9
7
.3

9
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
8
,0

9
7
.3

9



E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 3

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
0
7
 -

 C
IT

IZ
E
N

S
 P

T
 C

O
N

T
'D

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
1
1
 -

 D
E
N

T
A
L

0
.0

0
5
5
1
.7

6
5
5
1
.7

6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
5
1
.7

6

  
  

  
  
  
  
2
3
1
 -

 M
P
E
R
S
 E

R
0
.0

0
2
,6

8
3
.2

0
2
,6

8
3
.2

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,6

8
3
.2

0

1
1
0
 -

 G
E
N

 A
D

M
IN

1
3
6
,1

1
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
3
6
,1

1
5
.0

0
1
1
0
,9

8
8
.0

1
5
,2

6
8
.9

4
1
9
,8

5
8
.0

5

  
  

1
1

 -
 T

O
W

N
 H

A
L
L

1
3

2
,6

1
5

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

3
2

,6
1

5
.0

0
1

0
9

,9
2

9
.0

0
5

,2
6

8
.9

4
1

7
,4

1
7

.0
6

  
  

  
  
3
2
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 E

Q
6
4
,0

0
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
4
,0

0
8
.0

0
5
8
,9

1
5
.4

5
2
,2

9
0
.0

0
2
,8

0
2
.5

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S

6
4
,0

0
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
4
,0

0
8
.0

0
5
8
,9

1
5
.4

5
2
,2

9
0
.0

0
2
,8

0
2
.5

5

  
  

  
  
3
9
 -

 C
O

N
T
 S

V
S
 O

T
H

1
3
,8

3
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
3
,8

3
1
.0

0
1
3
,2

2
0
.9

6
0
.0

0
6
1
0
.0

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
5
 -

 M
E
M

B
 &

 D
U

E
S

9
,0

7
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
,0

7
1
.0

0
8
,4

7
7
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
9
4
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
9
9
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

4
,7

6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,7

6
0
.0

0
4
,7

4
3
.9

6
0
.0

0
1
6
.0

4

  
  

  
  
5
0
 -

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
1
0
,4

6
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,4

6
4
.0

0
7
,4

5
2
.0

4
0
.0

0
3
,0

1
1
.9

6

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
8
0
 -

 C
O

M
M

1
0
,4

6
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,4

6
4
.0

0
7
,4

5
2
.0

4
0
.0

0
3
,0

1
1
.9

6

  
  

  
  
6
0
 -

 S
U

P
P
LI

E
S

1
8
,4

3
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
8
,4

3
1
.0

0
1
1
,1

1
5
.3

2
0
.0

0
7
,3

1
5
.6

8

  
  

  
  
  
  
6
1
0
 -

 S
U

P
P
LI

E
S

1
0
,2

1
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,2

1
1
.0

0
6
,3

8
0
.6

5
0
.0

0
3
,8

3
0
.3

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
6
5
0
 -

 P
O

S
T
A
G

E
8
,2

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
8
,2

2
0
.0

0
4
,7

3
4
.6

7
0
.0

0
3
,4

8
5
.3

3

  
  

  
  
8
0
 -

 A
D

V
E
R
, 
P
R
IN

T
1
8
,5

1
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
8
,5

1
5
.0

0
6
,8

3
2
.6

8
2
,9

7
8
.9

4
8
,7

0
3
.3

8

  
  

  
  
  
  
8
1
0
 -

 A
D

V
E
R
T
IS

E
4
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
,4

1
2
.0

9
2
3
2
.5

0
2
,8

5
5
.4

1

  
  

  
  
  
  
8
3
0
 -

 F
O

R
M

S
8
,9

1
0
.0

0
-7

5
0
.0

0
8
,1

6
0
.0

0
2
,4

0
8
.3

6
0
.0

0
5
,7

5
1
.6

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
8
5
0
 -

 T
O

W
N

 R
E
P
O

R
T

2
,0

0
0
.0

0
7
5
0
.0

0
2
,7

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,7

4
6
.4

4
3
.5

6

  
  

  
  
  
  
8
6
0
 -

 T
A
X
 B

IL
LS

3
,1

0
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,1

0
5
.0

0
3
,0

1
2
.2

3
0
.0

0
9
2
.7

7

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

7
,3

6
6
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
,3

6
6
.0

0
1
2
,3

9
2
.5

5
0
.0

0
-5

,0
2
6
.5

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
1
0
 -

 M
IL

E
A
G

E
/T

R
A
V

7
,3

6
6
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
,3

6
6
.0

0
5
,5

4
7
.3

3
0
.0

0
1
,8

1
8
.6

7

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
1
1
 -

 M
I/

T
R
A
V
 E

LE
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
,8

4
5
.2

2
0
.0

0
-6

,8
4
5
.2

2

  
  

1
9

 -
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
1

,0
5

9
.0

1
0

.0
0

2
,4

4
0

.9
9

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

3
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

5
9
.0

1
0
.0

0
2
,4

4
0
.9

9

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
9
9
 -

 M
IS

C
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

5
9
.0

1
0
.0

0
2
,4

4
0
.9

9

1
1
5
 -

 E
LE

C
T
IO

N
S

1
3
,5

6
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
3
,5

6
1
.0

0
2
,5

9
1
.8

1
3
7
8
.0

0
1
0
,5

9
1
.1

9

  
  

1
3

 -
 E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

S
1

3
,5

6
1

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

3
,5

6
1

.0
0

2
,5

9
1

.8
1

3
7

8
.0

0
1

0
,5

9
1

.1
9

  
  

  
  
3
9
 -

 C
O

N
T
 S

V
S
 O

T
H

9
,3

3
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
,3

3
9
.0

0
2
,3

4
7
.2

6
0
.0

0
6
,9

9
1
.7

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
9
9
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

9
,3

3
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
,3

3
9
.0

0
2
,3

4
7
.2

6
0
.0

0
6
,9

9
1
.7

4

  
  

  
  
6
0
 -

 S
U

P
P
LI

E
S

2
,8

2
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,8

2
8
.0

0
2
4
4
.5

5
0
.0

0
2
,5

8
3
.4

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
6
1
0
 -

 S
U

P
P
LI

E
S

1
,1

2
6
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

2
6
.0

0
2
4
4
.5

5
0
.0

0
8
8
1
.4

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
6
5
0
 -

 P
O

S
T
A
G

E
1
,7

0
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,7

0
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,7

0
2
.0

0

  
  

  
  
8
0
 -

 A
D

V
E
R
, 
P
R
IN

T
9
8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
7
8
.0

0
6
0
2
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
8
1
0
 -

 A
D

V
E
R
T
IS

E
9
8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
7
8
.0

0
6
0
2
.0

0

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

4
1
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
1
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
1
4
.0

0



E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 4

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
1
5
 -

 E
LE

C
T
IO

N
S
 C

O
N

T
'D

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
1
0
 -

 M
IL

E
A
G

E
/T

R
A
V

4
1
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
1
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
1
4
.0

0

1
1
7
 -

 G
E
N

 A
D

M
IN

 I
N

4
3
,9

7
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
3
,9

7
8
.0

0
2
9
,3

4
1
.5

0
0
.0

0
1
4
,6

3
6
.5

0

  
  

9
9

 -
 N

O
T

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

4
3

,9
7

8
.0

0
0

.0
0

4
3

,9
7

8
.0

0
2

9
,3

4
1

.5
0

0
.0

0
1

4
,6

3
6

.5
0

  
  

  
  
3
8
 -

 C
O

N
T
 S

V
S
 I

N
S

4
3
,9

7
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
3
,9

7
8
.0

0
2
9
,3

4
1
.5

0
0
.0

0
1
4
,6

3
6
.5

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
2
5
 -

 I
N

S
 P

R
O

P
 &

 C
2
0
,0

6
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
,0

6
8
.0

0
1
5
,6

7
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,3

8
9
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
2
6
 -

 I
N

S
 W

.C
.

1
8
,7

9
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
8
,7

9
0
.0

0
1
2
,9

1
7
.5

0
0
.0

0
5
,8

7
2
.5

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
2
7
 -

 I
N

S
 U

N
E
M

P
LO

Y
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
6
6
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,3

3
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
2
8
 -

 I
N

S
 V

O
LU

N
T
E
E

1
2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
0
.0

0

1
1
9
 -

 C
O

N
T
IN

G
E
N

C
Y

2
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0

  
  

1
1

 -
 T

O
W

N
 H

A
L
L

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
2

,5
0

0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

2
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
9
9
 -

 M
IS

C
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0

1
2
5
 -

 A
C
O

8
,4

5
7
.0

0
0
.0

0
8
,4

5
7
.0

0
7
,7

8
6
.8

7
0
.0

0
6
7
0
.1

3

  
  

7
2

 -
 A

C
O

8
,4

5
7

.0
0

0
.0

0
8

,4
5

7
.0

0
7

,7
8

6
.8

7
0

.0
0

6
7

0
.1

3

  
  

  
  
3
9
 -

 C
O

N
T
 S

V
S
 O

T
H

6
,9

5
7
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
,9

5
7
.0

0
7
,2

0
6
.7

7
0
.0

0
-2

4
9
.7

7

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
8
1
 -

 A
C
O

6
,9

5
7
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
,9

5
7
.0

0
7
,2

0
6
.7

7
0
.0

0
-2

4
9
.7

7

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

1
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
5
8
0
.1

0
0
.0

0
9
1
9
.9

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
1
0
 -

 M
IL

E
A
G

E
/T

R
A
V

1
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
5
8
0
.1

0
0
.0

0
9
1
9
.9

0

1
2
8
 -

 H
H

S
 G

/A
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

7
1

 -
 G

A
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
3
9
 -

 C
O

N
T
 S

V
S
 O

T
H

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0

1
2
9
 -

 H
H

S
 S

O
C
IA

L 
S

1
,1

3
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

3
1
.0

0
1
,1

3
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

7
5

 -
 S

O
C

IA
L
 S

E
R

V
1

,1
3

1
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
,1

3
1

.0
0

1
,1

3
1

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
9
1
 -

 O
T
H

E
R
 S

O
C
 S

V
1
,1

3
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

3
1
.0

0
1
,1

3
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
9
9
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

1
,1

3
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

3
1
.0

0
1
,1

3
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
3
1
 -

 R
O

A
D

S
8
1
4
,3

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
8
1
4
,3

5
0
.0

0
3
0
4
,8

2
1
.0

7
0
.0

0
5
0
9
,5

2
8
.9

3

  
  

5
1

 -
 R

O
A

D
S

8
1

4
,3

5
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
8

1
4

,3
5

0
.0

0
3

0
4

,8
2

1
.0

7
0

.0
0

5
0

9
,5

2
8

.9
3

  
  

  
  
3
3
 -

 C
O

N
T
 P

R
O

F
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

E
R
V

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
4
0
 -

 R
E
P
A
IR

S
 &

 M
A

8
1
3
,3

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
8
1
3
,3

5
0
.0

0
3
0
4
,8

2
1
.0

7
0
.0

0
5
0
8
,5

2
8
.9

3



E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 5

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
3
1
 -

 R
O

A
D

S
 C

O
N

T
'D

  
  

  
  
  
  
4
8
1
 -

 R
D

S
/C

O
N

S
T
R
U

C
1
9
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
9
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
8
7
.5

0
0
.0

0
1
9
8
,6

1
2
.5

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
4
8
2
 -

 R
D

S
/R

E
S
U

R
F
A

4
7
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
-2

0
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
5
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
5
5
,8

1
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
9
9
,1

8
6
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
4
8
3
 -

 R
D

S
/R

E
P
A
IR

S
1
3
9
,3

5
0
.0

0
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
5
9
,3

5
0
.0

0
1
4
8
,6

1
9
.5

7
0
.0

0
1
0
,7

3
0
.4

3

1
4
1
 -

 B
&

G
 C

A
R
E
 &

 M
2
1
,7

3
0
.0

0
3
6
,5

0
0
.0

0
5
8
,2

3
0
.0

0
1
7
,3

4
8
.3

9
0
.0

0
4
0
,8

8
1
.6

1

  
  

1
1

 -
 T

O
W

N
 H

A
L
L

1
3

,3
6

0
.0

0
1

,5
0

0
.0

0
1

4
,8

6
0

.0
0

1
4

,1
5

4
.3

1
0

.0
0

7
0

5
.6

9

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
9
,6

6
0
.0

0
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
1
,1

6
0
.0

0
1
0
,4

7
8
.7

0
0
.0

0
6
8
1
.3

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S

9
,6

6
0
.0

0
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
1
,1

6
0
.0

0
1
0
,4

7
8
.7

0
0
.0

0
6
8
1
.3

0

  
  

  
  
4
0
 -

 R
E
P
A
IR

S
 &

 M
A

3
,7

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,7

0
0
.0

0
3
,6

7
5
.6

1
0
.0

0
2
4
.3

9

  
  

  
  
  
  
4
1
0
 -

 B
LD

G
S
 &

 G
R
O

U
3
,7

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,7

0
0
.0

0
3
,6

7
5
.6

1
0
.0

0
2
4
.3

9

  
  

2
1

 -
 R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

2
,8

0
0

.0
0

3
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
3

7
,8

0
0

.0
0

2
,8

5
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

4
,9

5
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
9
5
0
.0

0
3
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
5
,9

5
0
.0

0
2
,5

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
3
,4

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S

9
5
0
.0

0
3
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
5
,9

5
0
.0

0
2
,5

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
3
,4

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
4
0
 -

 R
E
P
A
IR

S
 &

 M
A

1
,8

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,8

5
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,5

5
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
4
1
0
 -

 B
LD

G
S
 &

 G
R
O

U
1
,8

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,8

5
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,5

5
0
.0

0

  
  

2
2

 -
 B

U
N

G
A

N
U

T
1

,3
6

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
,3

6
0

.0
0

3
5

.0
8

0
.0

0
1

,3
2

4
.9

2

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
6
6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
6
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S

6
6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
6
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
4
0
 -

 R
E
P
A
IR

S
 &

 M
A

7
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
0
0
.0

0
3
5
.0

8
0
.0

0
6
6
4
.9

2

  
  

  
  
  
  
4
1
0
 -

 B
LD

G
S
 &

 G
R
O

U
7
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
0
0
.0

0
3
5
.0

8
0
.0

0
6
6
4
.9

2

  
  

2
3

 -
 K

B
P

4
4

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

4
4

0
.0

0
3

0
9

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

3
1

.0
0

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
4
4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
4
0
.0

0
3
0
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
3
1
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S

4
4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
4
0
.0

0
3
0
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
3
1
.0

0

  
  

3
1

 -
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 S

T
A

3
,7

7
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

,7
7

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

,7
7

0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
2
,6

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,6

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,6

2
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S

2
,6

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,6

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,6

2
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
4
0
 -

 R
E
P
A
IR

S
 &

 M
A

1
,1

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
4
1
0
 -

 B
LD

G
S
 &

 G
R
O

U
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0

1
4
2
 -

 B
&

G
 M

O
W

IN
G

6
1
,6

4
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
1
,6

4
2
.0

0
5
4
,9

6
3
.6

5
5
,5

5
4
.4

0
1
,1

2
3
.9

5

  
  

5
1

 -
 R

O
A

D
S

1
1

,5
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
1

,5
0

0
.0

0
1

1
,4

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
1
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
1
,4

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
7
0
 -

 M
O

W
IN

G
1
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
1
,4

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0

  
  

9
0

 -
 M

IS
C

5
0

,1
4

2
.0

0
0

.0
0

5
0

,1
4

2
.0

0
4

3
,5

6
3

.6
5

5
,5

5
4

.4
0

1
,0

2
3

.9
5

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
5
0
,1

4
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,1

4
2
.0

0
4
3
,5

6
3
.6

5
5
,5

5
4
.4

0
1
,0

2
3
.9

5



E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 6

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
4
2
 -

 B
&

G
 M

O
W

IN
G

 C
O

N
T
'D

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
7
0
 -

 M
O

W
IN

G
5
0
,1

4
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,1

4
2
.0

0
4
3
,5

6
3
.6

5
5
,5

5
4
.4

0
1
,0

2
3
.9

5

1
4
3
 -

 B
&

G
 P

LO
W

IN
G

6
5
1
,9

4
0
.0

0
-3

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
6
1
6
,9

4
0
.0

0
5
7
8
,5

7
0
.8

1
0
.0

0
3
8
,3

6
9
.1

9

  
  

1
1

 -
 T

O
W

N
 H

A
L
L

4
,6

4
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
4

,6
4

0
.0

0
4

,6
3

9
.9

8
0

.0
0

0
.0

2

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
4
,6

4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,6

4
0
.0

0
4
,6

3
9
.9

8
0
.0

0
0
.0

2

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
6
0
 -

 P
LO

W
 &

 S
A
N

D
4
,6

4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,6

4
0
.0

0
4
,6

3
9
.9

8
0
.0

0
0
.0

2

  
  

2
2

 -
 B

U
N

G
A

N
U

T
7

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
7

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

7
0

0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
7
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
6
0
 -

 P
LO

W
 &

 S
A
N

D
7
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
0
0
.0

0

  
  

2
3

 -
 K

B
P

1
,2

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

,2
0

0
.0

0
3

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
9

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
6
0
 -

 P
LO

W
 &

 S
A
N

D
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
0
0
.0

0

  
  

3
1

 -
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 S

T
A

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

,0
0

0
.0

0
3

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
6
0
 -

 P
LO

W
 &

 S
A
N

D
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

5
1

 -
 R

O
A

D
S

6
4

2
,4

0
0

.0
0

-3
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
6

0
7

,4
0

0
.0

0
5

7
0

,6
3

0
.8

3
0

.0
0

3
6

,7
6

9
.1

7

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
6
4
2
,4

0
0
.0

0
-3

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
6
0
7
,4

0
0
.0

0
5
7
0
,6

3
0
.8

3
0
.0

0
3
6
,7

6
9
.1

7

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
6
0
 -

 P
LO

W
 &

 S
A
N

D
6
4
2
,4

0
0
.0

0
-3

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
6
0
7
,4

0
0
.0

0
5
7
0
,6

3
0
.8

3
0
.0

0
3
6
,7

6
9
.1

7

1
4
5
 -

 B
&

G
 W

A
S
T
E
 S

V
1
6
,7

1
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
6
,7

1
5
.0

0
1
0
,9

1
2
.0

5
0
.0

0
5
,8

0
2
.9

5

  
  

1
1

 -
 T

O
W

N
 H

A
L
L

1
,8

2
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

,8
2

0
.0

0
6

2
5

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

,1
9

5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
1
,8

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,8

2
0
.0

0
6
2
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

9
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
3
0
 -

 W
A
S
T
E
 S

V
S

1
,8

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,8

2
0
.0

0
6
2
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

9
5
.0

0

  
  

2
1

 -
 R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

3
,5

2
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

,5
2

0
.0

0
2

,6
8

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

8
4

0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
1
,3

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,3

0
0
.0

0
5
3
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
6
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
3
0
 -

 W
A
S
T
E
 S

V
S

1
,3

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,3

0
0
.0

0
5
3
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
6
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
3
5
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 W

A
2
,2

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,2

2
0
.0

0
2
,1

4
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
3
1
 -

 P
R
O

F
 P

O
R
T
A
 P

2
,2

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,2

2
0
.0

0
2
,1

4
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
5
.0

0

  
  

2
2

 -
 B

U
N

G
A

N
U

T
6

,3
1

5
.0

0
0

.0
0

6
,3

1
5

.0
0

5
,1

1
4

.5
5

0
.0

0
1

,2
0

0
.4

5

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
2
,9

4
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
,9

4
0
.0

0
3
,9

4
7
.0

5
0
.0

0
-7

.0
5

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
3
0
 -

 W
A
S
T
E
 S

V
S

2
,9

4
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
,9

4
0
.0

0
3
,9

4
7
.0

5
0
.0

0
-7

.0
5

  
  

  
  
3
5
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 W

A
3
,3

7
5
.0

0
-1

,0
0
0
.0

0
2
,3

7
5
.0

0
1
,1

6
7
.5

0
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
7
.5

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
3
1
 -

 P
R
O

F
 P

O
R
T
A
 P

3
,3

7
5
.0

0
-1

,0
0
0
.0

0
2
,3

7
5
.0

0
1
,1

6
7
.5

0
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
7
.5

0

  
  

2
3

 -
 K

B
P

3
,5

2
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

,5
2

0
.0

0
1

,8
1

2
.5

0
0

.0
0

1
,7

0
7

.5
0

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
1
,3

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,3

0
0
.0

0
4
7
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
8
2
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
3
0
 -

 W
A
S
T
E
 S

V
S

1
,3

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,3

0
0
.0

0
4
7
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
8
2
5
.0

0



E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 7

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
4
5
 -

 B
&

G
 W

A
S
T
E
 S

V
 C

O
N

T
'D

  
  

  
  
3
5
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 W

A
2
,2

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,2

2
0
.0

0
1
,3

3
7
.5

0
0
.0

0
8
8
2
.5

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
3
1
 -

 P
R
O

F
 P

O
R
T
A
 P

2
,2

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,2

2
0
.0

0
1
,3

3
7
.5

0
0
.0

0
8
8
2
.5

0

  
  

5
1

 -
 R

O
A

D
S

1
,5

4
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

,5
4

0
.0

0
6

8
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
8

6
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
3
1
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 B

L
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
2
5
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
4
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
3
0
 -

 W
A
S
T
E
 S

V
S

1
,2

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
2
5
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
4
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
3
5
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 W

A
3
4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
4
0
.0

0
4
2
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
-8

5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
3
1
 -

 P
R
O

F
 P

O
R
T
A
 P

3
4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
4
0
.0

0
4
2
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
-8

5
.0

0

1
4
7
 -

 B
&

G
 E

N
E
R
G

Y
3
6
,9

8
4
.0

0
-1

,5
0
0
.0

0
3
5
,4

8
4
.0

0
1
6
,3

2
6
.7

7
0
.0

0
1
9
,1

5
7
.2

3

  
  

1
1

 -
 T

O
W

N
 H

A
L
L

1
2

,4
8

4
.0

0
-1

,5
0

0
.0

0
1

0
,9

8
4

.0
0

6
,9

0
6

.3
2

0
.0

0
4

,0
7

7
.6

8

  
  

  
  
5
0
 -

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
1
2
,4

8
4
.0

0
-1

,5
0
0
.0

0
1
0
,9

8
4
.0

0
6
,9

0
6
.3

2
0
.0

0
4
,0

7
7
.6

8

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

P
A
N

E
3
,9

8
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,9

8
4
.0

0
1
,3

2
1
.9

2
0
.0

0
2
,6

6
2
.0

8

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
6
0
 -

 E
LE

C
T
R
IC

IT
Y

8
,5

0
0
.0

0
-1

,5
0
0
.0

0
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
,5

8
4
.4

0
0
.0

0
1
,4

1
5
.6

0

  
  

2
1

 -
 R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

5
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

5
0

0
.0

0
3

4
6

.0
1

0
.0

0
1

5
3

.9
9

  
  

  
  
5
0
 -

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
3
4
6
.0

1
0
.0

0
1
5
3
.9

9

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
6
0
 -

 E
LE

C
T
R
IC

IT
Y

5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
3
4
6
.0

1
0
.0

0
1
5
3
.9

9

  
  

2
2

 -
 B

U
N

G
A

N
U

T
4

,5
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

4
,5

0
0

.0
0

1
,0

3
6

.6
1

0
.0

0
3

,4
6

3
.3

9

  
  

  
  
5
0
 -

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
4
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

3
6
.6

1
0
.0

0
3
,4

6
3
.3

9

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
6
0
 -

 E
LE

C
T
R
IC

IT
Y

4
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

3
6
.6

1
0
.0

0
3
,4

6
3
.3

9

  
  

2
3

 -
 K

B
P

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
5

3
9

.5
4

0
.0

0
1

,4
6

0
.4

6

  
  

  
  
5
0
 -

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
3
9
.5

4
0
.0

0
1
,4

6
0
.4

6

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
6
0
 -

 E
LE

C
T
R
IC

IT
Y

2
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
3
9
.5

4
0
.0

0
1
,4

6
0
.4

6

  
  

3
1

 -
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 S

T
A

9
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
3

,8
8

2
.0

4
0

.0
0

5
,1

1
7

.9
6

  
  

  
  
5
0
 -

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
,8

8
2
.0

4
0
.0

0
5
,1

1
7
.9

6

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
6
0
 -

 E
LE

C
T
R
IC

IT
Y

9
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
,8

8
2
.0

4
0
.0

0
5
,1

1
7
.9

6

  
  

5
1

 -
 R

O
A

D
S

8
,5

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
8

,5
0

0
.0

0
3

,6
1

6
.2

5
0

.0
0

4
,8

8
3

.7
5

  
  

  
  
5
0
 -

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
8
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
8
,5

0
0
.0

0
3
,6

1
6
.2

5
0
.0

0
4
,8

8
3
.7

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
6
0
 -

 E
LE

C
T
R
IC

IT
Y

8
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
8
,5

0
0
.0

0
3
,6

1
6
.2

5
0
.0

0
4
,8

8
3
.7

5

1
4
8
 -

 B
&

G
 S

IG
N

S
6
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

2
4
.0

9
0
.0

0
3
,9

7
5
.9

1

  
  

2
1

 -
 R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

5
0

0
.0

0
-1

0
0

.0
0

4
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
4

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
6
0
 -

 S
U

P
P
LI

E
S

5
0
0
.0

0
-1

0
0
.0

0
4
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
6
7
0
 -

 S
IG

N
S

5
0
0
.0

0
-1

0
0
.0

0
4
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
0
0
.0

0

  
  

2
2

 -
 B

U
N

G
A

N
U

T
5

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
5

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

5
0

0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
6
0
 -

 S
U

P
P
LI

E
S

5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
6
7
0
 -

 S
IG

N
S

5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0



E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 8

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
4
8
 -

 B
&

G
 S

IG
N

S
 C

O
N

T
'D

  
  

2
3

 -
 K

E
N

N
E

B
U

N
K

 P
D

0
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

1
0

0
.0

0
7

2
.0

2
0

.0
0

2
7

.9
8

  
  

  
  
6
0
 -

 S
U

P
P
LI

E
S

0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
7
2
.0

2
0
.0

0
2
7
.9

8

  
  

  
  
  
  
6
7
0
 -

 S
IG

N
S

0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
7
2
.0

2
0
.0

0
2
7
.9

8

  
  

3
1

 -
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 S

T
A

5
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

5
0

0
.0

0
1

2
4

.1
1

0
.0

0
3

7
5

.8
9

  
  

  
  
6
0
 -

 S
U

P
P
LI

E
S

5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
1
2
4
.1

1
0
.0

0
3
7
5
.8

9

  
  

  
  
  
  
6
7
0
 -

 S
IG

N
S

5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
1
2
4
.1

1
0
.0

0
3
7
5
.8

9

  
  

5
1

 -
 R

O
A

D
S

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
2

,3
2

7
.9

6
0

.0
0

2
,6

7
2

.0
4

  
  

  
  
6
0
 -

 S
U

P
P
LI

E
S

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
,3

2
7
.9

6
0
.0

0
2
,6

7
2
.0

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
6
7
0
 -

 S
IG

N
S

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
,3

2
7
.9

6
0
.0

0
2
,6

7
2
.0

4

1
5
0
 -

 T
R
F
 S

T
A
T
IO

N
3
3
5
,3

4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
3
5
,3

4
0
.0

0
1
9
9
,9

7
4
.4

0
0
.0

0
1
3
5
,3

6
5
.6

0

  
  

3
1

 -
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 S

T
A

3
3

5
,3

4
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

3
5

,3
4

0
.0

0
1

9
9

,9
7

4
.4

0
0

.0
0

1
3

5
,3

6
5

.6
0

  
  

  
  
3
5
 -

 C
T
R
C
T
 S

V
S
 W

A
3
1
0
,3

8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
1
0
,3

8
0
.0

0
1
8
8
,3

3
9
.7

2
0
.0

0
1
2
2
,0

4
0
.2

8

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S

2
,9

8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,9

8
0
.0

0
1
,0

6
9
.5

0
0
.0

0
1
,9

1
0
.5

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
4
9
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S
 C

A
N

2
,4

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,4

0
0
.0

0
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
5
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S
 T

IP
1
6
6
,2

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
6
6
,2

5
0
.0

0
1
1
5
,7

8
1
.1

6
0
.0

0
5
0
,4

6
8
.8

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
5
1
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S
 T

W
4
3
,7

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
3
,7

5
0
.0

0
1
9
,9

1
0
.0

6
0
.0

0
2
3
,8

3
9
.9

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
5
2
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S
 R

E
C

1
0
,6

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,6

5
0
.0

0
7
,1

0
0
.1

0
0
.0

0
3
,5

4
9
.9

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
5
5
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S
 H

A
U

3
3
,1

2
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
3
,1

2
5
.0

0
1
9
,8

9
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
3
,2

3
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
5
6
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S
 H

W
2
7
,1

2
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
7
,1

2
5
.0

0
1
1
,7

3
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
5
,3

9
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
5
7
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S
 H

R
1
1
,1

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
1
,1

0
0
.0

0
5
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,6

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
5
8
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S
 H

W
O

2
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
,4

4
8
.9

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

5
1
.1

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
5
9
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

V
S
 M

E
T

1
0
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,5

0
0
.0

0
3
,9

1
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
,5

9
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
4
0
 -

 R
E
P
A
IR

S
 &

 M
A

1
3
,3

3
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
3
,3

3
0
.0

0
7
,3

1
1
.6

1
0
.0

0
6
,0

1
8
.3

9

  
  

  
  
  
  
4
5
0
 -

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E
N

T
1
3
,3

3
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
3
,3

3
0
.0

0
7
,3

1
1
.6

1
0
.0

0
6
,0

1
8
.3

9

  
  

  
  
5
0
 -

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
6
,8

8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
,8

8
0
.0

0
1
,9

8
4
.6

6
0
.0

0
4
,8

9
5
.3

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
7
0
 -

 F
U

E
L

2
,8

8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,8

8
0
.0

0
8
0
3
.6

7
0
.0

0
2
,0

7
6
.3

3

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
8
0
 -

 C
O

M
M

4
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

8
0
.9

9
0
.0

0
2
,8

1
9
.0

1

  
  

  
  
6
0
 -

 S
U

P
P
LI

E
S

3
,7

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,7

5
0
.0

0
1
,7

6
3
.4

1
0
.0

0
1
,9

8
6
.5

9

  
  

  
  
  
  
6
1
0
 -

 S
U

P
P
LI

E
S

7
5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
5
0
.0

0
4
1
6
.5

8
0
.0

0
3
3
3
.4

2

  
  

  
  
  
  
6
9
0
 -

 P
P
G

3
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,3

4
6
.8

3
0
.0

0
1
,6

5
3
.1

7

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
7
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
2
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
2
0
 -

 S
T
A
T
E
 F

E
E
'S

5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
5
7
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
-7

5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
3
0
 -

 H
E
A
LT

H
 &

 W
E
L

5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0

1
6
1
 -

 P
A
R
K
S
 &

 R
E
C

8
,9

6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
8
,9

6
0
.0

0
6
,4

8
5
.9

6
0
.0

0
2
,4

7
4
.0

4

  
  

2
1

 -
 R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

8
,3

6
0

.0
0

-1
,2

0
0

.0
0

7
,1

6
0

.0
0

5
,0

3
2

.7
8

0
.0

0
2

,1
2

7
.2

2



E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 9

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
6
1
 -

 P
A
R
K
S
 &

 R
E
C
 C

O
N

T
'D

  
  

  
  
4
0
 -

 R
E
P
A
IR

S
 &

 M
A

9
5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
5
0
.0

0
8
5
6
.9

5
0
.0

0
9
3
.0

5

  
  

  
  
  
  
4
5
0
 -

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E
N

T
9
5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
5
0
.0

0
8
5
6
.9

5
0
.0

0
9
3
.0

5

  
  

  
  
5
0
 -

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
1
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
7
0
 -

 F
U

E
L

1
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
8
0
 -

 A
D

V
E
R
, 
P
R
IN

T
2
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
8
1
0
 -

 A
D

V
E
R
T
IS

E
2
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

7
,1

1
0
.0

0
-1

,2
0
0
.0

0
5
,9

1
0
.0

0
4
,1

7
5
.8

3
0
.0

0
1
,7

3
4
.1

7

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
4
0
 -

 R
E
C
 P

R
O

G
R
A
M

S
6
,8

6
0
.0

0
-1

,2
0
0
.0

0
5
,6

6
0
.0

0
4
,1

1
3
.7

9
0
.0

0
1
,5

4
6
.2

1

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
9
9
 -

 M
IS

C
2
5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
5
0
.0

0
6
2
.0

4
0
.0

0
1
8
7
.9

6

  
  

2
2

 -
 B

U
N

G
A

N
U

T
6

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
6

0
0

.0
0

4
4

3
.5

2
0

.0
0

1
5

6
.4

8

  
  

  
  
5
0
 -

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
6
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
0
0
.0

0
4
4
3
.5

2
0
.0

0
1
5
6
.4

8

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
8
0
 -

 C
O

M
M

6
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
0
0
.0

0
4
4
3
.5

2
0
.0

0
1
5
6
.4

8

  
  

2
3

 -
 K

P
B

0
.0

0
1

,2
0

0
.0

0
1

,2
0

0
.0

0
1

,0
0

9
.6

6
0

.0
0

1
9

0
.3

4

  
  

  
  
5
0
 -

 U
T
IL

IT
IE

S
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
9
.6

6
0
.0

0
1
9
0
.3

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
5
8
0
 -

 C
O

M
M

0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
9
.6

6
0
.0

0
1
9
0
.3

4

1
7
1
 -

 R
E
S
 E

Q
U

IP
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

9
9

 -
 N

O
T

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
9
5
 -

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E
S

1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
7
0
 -

 T
O

W
N

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E

1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
7
3
 -

 R
E
S
 B

LD
G

1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

9
9

 -
 N

O
T

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
9
5
 -

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E
S

1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
7
0
 -

 T
O

W
N

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E

1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
7
4
 -

 R
E
S
 -

 S
O

 W
A
T

5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

9
9

 -
 N

O
T

 S
P

E
C

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
9
5
 -

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E
S

5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
7
0
 -

 T
O

W
N

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E

5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
7
5
 -

 R
E
S
 C

O
N

 S
V
C

1
8
,6

7
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
8
,6

7
4
.0

0
1
8
,6

7
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

9
9

 -
 N

O
T

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

1
8

,6
7

4
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
8

,6
7

4
.0

0
1

8
,6

7
4

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
9
5
 -

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E
S

1
8
,6

7
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
8
,6

7
4
.0

0
1
8
,6

7
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
7
0
 -

 T
O

W
N

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E

1
8
,6

7
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
8
,6

7
4
.0

0
1
8
,6

7
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0



E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 1

0

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
7
7
 -

 R
E
S
 M

IS
C
 C

O
N

T
'D

1
7
7
 -

 R
E
S
 M

IS
C

3
2
,7

1
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
2
,7

1
5
.0

0
3
2
,7

1
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

9
9

 -
 N

O
T

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

3
2

,7
1

5
.0

0
0

.0
0

3
2

,7
1

5
.0

0
3

2
,7

1
5

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
9
5
 -

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E
S

3
2
,7

1
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
2
,7

1
5
.0

0
3
2
,7

1
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
7
0
 -

 T
O

W
N

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E

3
2
,7

1
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
2
,7

1
5
.0

0
3
2
,7

1
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
7
9
 -

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E
S
 G

M
F

9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

9
1

 -
 G

M
F
R

9
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

9
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
9

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
9
5
 -

 R
E
S
E
R
V
E
S

9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
7
8
 -

 G
M

F
R
 R

E
S
E
R
V
E

9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
8
1
 -

 O
U

T
S
 G

E
N

 A
D

1
9
4
,2

0
0
.0

0
4
5
,1

5
0
.0

0
2
3
9
,3

5
0
.0

0
1
3
8
,9

2
2
.1

4
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
9
3
,4

2
7
.8

6

  
  

1
1

 -
 T

O
W

N
 H

A
L
L

1
4

4
,2

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

4
4

,2
0

0
.0

0
5

8
,0

3
0

.9
6

0
.0

0
8

6
,1

6
9

.0
4

  
  

  
  
3
3
 -

 C
O

N
T
 P

R
O

F
9
4
,2

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
4
,2

0
0
.0

0
4
5
,3

2
1
.2

6
0
.0

0
4
8
,8

7
8
.7

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

E
R
V

5
4
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
4
,5

0
0
.0

0
3
2
,9

8
4
.2

0
0
.0

0
2
1
,5

1
5
.8

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
2
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

E
R
V
 L

E
3
4
,2

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
4
,2

0
0
.0

0
6
,8

3
7
.0

6
0
.0

0
2
7
,3

6
2
.9

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
2
3
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

E
R
V
 A

U
5
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,5

0
0
.0

0
5
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
3
7
 -

 C
O

N
T
 O

U
T

5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
,7

0
9
.7

0
0
.0

0
3
7
,2

9
0
.3

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
9
9
 -

 C
O

N
T
 S

V
S
 O

T
H

5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
,7

0
9
.7

0
0
.0

0
3
7
,2

9
0
.3

0

  
  

1
5

 -
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R

IE
S

8
,5

0
0

.0
0

4
5

,1
5

0
.0

0
5

3
,6

5
0

.0
0

3
9

,8
9

1
.1

8
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
6

,7
5

8
.8

2

  
  

  
  
3
7
 -

 C
O

N
T
 O

U
T

8
,5

0
0
.0

0
4
5
,1

5
0
.0

0
5
3
,6

5
0
.0

0
3
9
,8

9
1
.1

8
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
6
,7

5
8
.8

2

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
9
9
 -

 C
O

N
T
 S

V
S
 O

T
H

8
,5

0
0
.0

0
4
5
,1

5
0
.0

0
5
3
,6

5
0
.0

0
3
9
,8

9
1
.1

8
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
6
,7

5
8
.8

2

  
  

1
7

 -
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

5
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

5
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
5

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
3
3
 -

 C
O

N
T
 P

R
O

F
5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
1
0
 -

 P
R
O

F
 S

E
R
V

5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0

  
  

2
2

 -
 B

U
N

G
A

N
U

T
4

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
4

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

4
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
3
7
 -

 C
O

N
T
 O

U
T

4
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
9
9
 -

 C
O

N
T
 S

V
S
 O

T
H

4
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
8
5
 -

 O
U

T
S
O

U
R
C
E
 O

T
1
9
0
,3

8
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
9
0
,3

8
9
.0

0
1
8
6
,9

9
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,3

9
4
.0

0

  
  

9
5

 -
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
1

4
1

,2
7

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
4

1
,2

7
0

.0
0

1
4

1
,2

7
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
3
7
 -

 C
O

N
T
 O

U
T

1
4
1
,2

7
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
4
1
,2

7
0
.0

0
1
4
1
,2

7
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
9
9
 -

 C
O

N
T
 S

V
S
 O

T
H

1
4
1
,2

7
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
4
1
,2

7
0
.0

0
1
4
1
,2

7
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

9
9

 -
 N

O
T

 S
P

E
C

4
9

,1
1

9
.0

0
0

.0
0

4
9

,1
1

9
.0

0
4

5
,7

2
5

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

,3
9

4
.0

0

  
  

  
  
3
7
 -

 C
O

N
T
 O

U
T

4
4
,1

1
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
4
,1

1
9
.0

0
4
0
,7

2
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,3

9
4
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
9
9
 -

 C
O

N
T
 S

V
S
 O

T
H

4
4
,1

1
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
4
,1

1
9
.0

0
4
0
,7

2
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,3

9
4
.0

0

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0



E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 1

1

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
8
5
 -

 O
U

T
S
O

U
R
C
E
 O

T
 C

O
N

T
'D

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
9
9
 -

 M
IS

C
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
8
6
 -

 O
U

T
S
 G

M
F
R

6
3
0
,1

9
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
3
0
,1

9
1
.0

0
5
7
7
,6

7
5
.1

2
5
2
,5

1
5
.9

2
-0

.0
4

  
  

9
1

 -
 G

M
F
R

6
3

0
,1

9
1

.0
0

0
.0

0
6

3
0

,1
9

1
.0

0
5

7
7

,6
7

5
.1

2
5

2
,5

1
5

.9
2

-0
.0

4

  
  

  
  
3
7
 -

 C
O

N
T
 O

U
T

6
3
0
,1

9
1
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
3
0
,1

9
1
.0

0
5
7
7
,6

7
5
.1

2
5
2
,5

1
5
.9

2
-0

.0
4

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
9
1
 -

 G
M

F
R
 P

E
R
S
O

N
N

4
3
5
,9

6
8
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
3
5
,9

6
8
.0

0
3
9
9
,6

3
7
.3

7
3
6
,3

3
0
.6

7
-0

.0
4

  
  

  
  
  
  
3
9
2
 -

 G
M

F
R
 C

O
N

T
R
A
C

1
9
4
,2

2
3
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
9
4
,2

2
3
.0

0
1
7
8
,0

3
7
.7

5
1
6
,1

8
5
.2

5
0
.0

0

1
9
1
 -

 O
T
H

E
R
 C

IP
4
4
,3

3
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
4
,3

3
5
.0

0
1
8
,2

0
9
.0

2
0
.0

0
2
6
,1

2
5
.9

8

  
  

1
1

 -
 T

O
W

N
 H

A
L
L

3
0

,5
3

5
.0

0
0

.0
0

3
0

,5
3

5
.0

0
1

1
,4

9
4

.1
4

0
.0

0
1

9
,0

4
0

.8
6

  
  

  
  
7
0
 -

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E
N

T
3
0
,5

3
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
0
,5

3
5
.0

0
1
1
,4

9
4
.1

4
0
.0

0
1
9
,0

4
0
.8

6

  
  

  
  
  
  
7
1
0
 -

 C
O

M
P
 E

Q
U

IP
2
3
,5

3
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
3
,5

3
0
.0

0
7
,2

7
0
.8

0
0
.0

0
1
6
,2

5
9
.2

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
7
3
0
 -

 O
F
F
IC

E
 E

Q
U

IP
1
,5

9
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,5

9
5
.0

0
1
,5

9
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
7
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R
 E

Q
U

IP
5
,4

1
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,4

1
0
.0

0
2
,6

2
8
.3

4
0
.0

0
2
,7

8
1
.6

6

  
  

2
1

 -
 R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

9
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

9
0

0
.0

0
6

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

0
0

.0
0

  
  

  
  
7
0
 -

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E
N

T
9
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
0
0
.0

0
6
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
7
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R
 E

Q
U

IP
9
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
0
0
.0

0
6
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0

  
  

2
2

 -
 B

U
N

G
A

N
U

T
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
,9

0
9

.8
8

0
.0

0
2

,0
9

0
.1

2

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
,9

0
9
.8

8
0
.0

0
2
,0

9
0
.1

2

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
9
9
 -

 M
IS

C
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
,9

0
9
.8

8
0
.0

0
2
,0

9
0
.1

2

  
  

3
1

 -
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 S

T
A

7
,9

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
7

,9
0

0
.0

0
3

,2
0

5
.0

0
0

.0
0

4
,6

9
5

.0
0

  
  

  
  
7
0
 -

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E
N

T
7
,9

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
,9

0
0
.0

0
3
,2

0
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,6

9
5
.0

0

  
  

  
  
  
  
7
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R
 E

Q
U

IP
7
,9

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
,9

0
0
.0

0
3
,2

0
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,6

9
5
.0

0

1
9
5
 -

 R
S
U

 #
 5

7
5
,5

9
7
,2

4
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,5

9
7
,2

4
5
.0

0
5
,1

3
0
,8

0
7
.6

6
4
6
6
,4

3
7
.0

0
0
.3

4

  
  

9
2

 -
 R

S
U

 #
 5

7
5

,5
9

7
,2

4
5

.0
0

0
.0

0
5

,5
9

7
,2

4
5

.0
0

5
,1

3
0

,8
0

7
.6

6
4

6
6

,4
3

7
.0

0
0

.3
4

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

5
,5

9
7
,2

4
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,5

9
7
,2

4
5
.0

0
5
,1

3
0
,8

0
7
.6

6
4
6
6
,4

3
7
.0

0
0
.3

4

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
9
9
 -

 M
IS

C
5
,5

9
7
,2

4
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,5

9
7
,2

4
5
.0

0
5
,1

3
0
,8

0
7
.6

6
4
6
6
,4

3
7
.0

0
0
.3

4

1
9
7
 -

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

3
3
2
,9

6
3
.0

0
2
,2

2
1
.0

0
3
3
5
,1

8
4
.0

0
3
3
5
,1

8
3
.8

4
0
.0

0
0
.1

6

  
  

9
7

 -
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
3

3
2

,9
6

3
.0

0
2

,2
2

1
.0

0
3

3
5

,1
8

4
.0

0
3

3
5

,1
8

3
.8

4
0

.0
0

0
.1

6

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

3
3
2
,9

6
3
.0

0
2
,2

2
1
.0

0
3
3
5
,1

8
4
.0

0
3
3
5
,1

8
3
.8

4
0
.0

0
0
.1

6

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
9
9
 -

 M
IS

C
3
3
2
,9

6
3
.0

0
2
,2

2
1
.0

0
3
3
5
,1

8
4
.0

0
3
3
5
,1

8
3
.8

4
0
.0

0
0
.1

6

1
9
9
 -

 O
V
E
R
LA

Y
0
.0

0
1
5
,3

9
0
.4

4
1
5
,3

9
0
.4

4
5
,1

6
7
.3

2
0
.0

0
1
0
,2

2
3
.1

2

  
  

9
9

 -
 N

O
T

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

0
.0

0
1

5
,3

9
0

.4
4

1
5

,3
9

0
.4

4
5

,1
6

7
.3

2
0

.0
0

1
0

,2
2

3
.1

2



E
x

p
e

n
s
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt

A
LL

 M
o
n
th

s

F
U

N
D

: 
1

9
:5

5
 A

M

Ly
m

a
n

P
a
g
e
 1

2

0
5
/1

6
/2

0
2
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T
D

O
U

T
S
T
A
N

D
U

N
E
X
P
E
N

D
E
D

A
C
C
O

U
N

T
O

R
IG

IN
A
L

A
D

JU
S
T
M

E
N

T
N

E
T

N
E
T

E
N

C
U

M
B
A
LA

N
C
E

1
9
9
 -

 O
V
E
R
LA

Y
 C

O
N

T
'D

  
  

  
  
9
0
 -

 O
T
H

E
R

0
.0

0
1
5
,3

9
0
.4

4
1
5
,3

9
0
.4

4
5
,1

6
7
.3

2
0
.0

0
1
0
,2

2
3
.1

2

  
  

  
  
  
  
9
9
9
 -

 M
IS

C
0
.0

0
1
5
,3

9
0
.4

4
1
5
,3

9
0
.4

4
5
,1

6
7
.3

2
0
.0

0
1
0
,2

2
3
.1

2

F
in

a
l 
T
o
ta

ls
1
0
,2

1
4
,8

2
7
.0

0
2
2
3
,7

3
3
.4

4
1
0
,4

3
8
,5

6
0
.4

4
8
,6

7
6
,0

3
0
.6

2
5
3
7
,1

5
4
.2

6
1
,2

2
5
,3

7
5
.5

6



Report to Selectmen 

Month of April 2024 

2023-2024 Tax Year 

Real Estate Tax Commitment - $7,871,329.42 

Personal Property Tax Commitment – $     39,116.55 

Total Tax Commitment: $7.910,445.97 

Supplemental Taxes YTD: $    231.61 

Abatements Granted YTD: $      5,050.32  

Prior Year(s) Abatement(s) YTD: $           58.50 

Real Estate / Personal Property Tax Payments Collected $747,051.08 
Includes Current, Delinquent, Prepayments, and Lien Payments for the month. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

Monthly Excise Tax 

Excise Tax Received 

Vehicles registered here at office:    $  97,784.39 

Online Rapid Renewal Service       21,969.06 

Total Vehicle Excise   $119,753.45 

Boat Excise 

Boats registered here at office:    $        753.30 

Online Registration Service   $___  332.00 

Total Boat Excise    $  1,085.30 

Total Excise   $ 120,838.75 

Excise Tax Reimbursement      $     5,193.58    

Excise Tax Collected by State 

Year-to-date excise collection   $1,134,233.19 

Respectfully submitted:  Susan J. Bellerose, Tax Collector 

ITEM #6: (c.) Tax Collectors Report



5-12-24

IT COMMITTEE REPORT – MAY 2024 

1. BUNGANUT POND INTERNET & SECURITY

The IT Committee visited the Bunganut Pond site to walk the site and identify potential

implementation of communications.

A. Internet Access

i. The IT Committee did a site visit of Bunganut Pond and conducted measurements

for a proposal for installing fiber cable from the parking area to the ball field.

B. Security Cameras

i. The IT Committee used the site walk to identify the number and location of

security cameras to provide monitoring of the parking area for the pond and the

associated buildings as well as the ballpark buildings and parking area.

2. BROADBAND INTERNET FOR ALL LYMAN RESIDENTS

The IT Committee have been communicating with the MCA (Maine Connectivity

Authority) concerning the Maine State project to provide internet broadband for all Maine

residents.

Sixty-six residents have been identified as having internet access below the federal

specifications of 100Mbps download and 20Mbps upload speeds. These residents are

eligible for the BEAD project for internet access.

The project is in its early stages and will be expected to complete in 2027.

ITEM #6: (d.) IT Committee Report



Bunganut Pond Committee:  Report for SB after last meeting on 4-24-24 

Next Meeting scheduled for May 28th 

BPC will not be doing a spring clean-up as the damage is so huge in The Pines, there is nothing a 
volunteer committee could safely do at the moment.   

Potential projects that BPC could do this year with the funds (if allotted) that do not require a 
landscape architect or a survey are:   

o The boggy area at the base of the hill - The very boggy area the BPC recommends
bringing fill in.  Our understanding is it was supposed to be filled in more and
level, but it was not done properly at the time it was done.  The system in place
to get rid of the standing water has not worked, ever, to anyone’s knowledge.  It
has always remained an issue.

o Potential sand reclamation from where it has eroded into the water to put back
on shore (need to ck with DEP)

o A nicer path down the hill

Town: 
We did find out cost of goats for poison ivy remediation:  ¼ an acre is about 1,200.  

There are two farms that were contacted Scapegoats in Springvale and Wakhem Farm in Alfred.  

They also recommended sheep 😊 

Parks & Rec: 
o Volleyball court made into regulation size courts with 3 different net heights so

the courts could be rented out.  (Pricing that we could charge included in
attached notes)

o Slide needs repair
o Kids sand pit play area still needs to be remediated from glass and brought back

to life as it’s in total disarray.

Attached are the very detailed notes from the walkabout done on 4-15-24 
Also attached are questions and answers re who is using field side 

ITEM #6: (e.) Bunganut Park Committee Report



NOTES FROM WALKABOUT 

4/15/24 Bunganut Walk with Melissa Brandt from York County Soil & Water Conservaon 
Michelle Felicci 
Karen Kane 
Amber Swet 
Kevin Veilleux 
Holly Wooldridge 

Notes by Holly: 
1. Exisng Stairway
a. Remove the wooden “stairs”.
b. Berm the exisng stairway with shrubs to divert foot traffic to the exisng winding
path leading down to the field.
2. Suggested that winding path (to the le of the stairway) leading down to the field
become the future primary access route.
a. Some erosion on the path. Should be addressed by town (road commissioner?).
b. Water needs to be diverted via diverters and/or catch basins.
c. Look at different diverter methods.
d. Look for suggesons on the US Forest Service site regarding ADA compliant
recommendaons/materials.
e. Missy said that maintaining ADA compliance is difficult but we can implement up to
the standards.
3. Playground
a. Currently, water drains down the both the stairway and the winding path to the field
and collects in and around the playground.
b. Does it make sense to move the playground equipment? There are concrete pads
supporng the climber.
c. Trees behind the playground equipment, especially the climber, need to be trimmed
back.
d. The wooden play structure seems ok structurally, but could use some TLC. Stain?
e. Supports on the swings of the wooden play structure are sinking into the saturated
ground.
f. Slide on the wooden play structure needs to be replaced. Parks & Rec looking into
new slide.
g. Is it worth looking into replacing the enre wooden structure?
4. Old outhouse
a. Need a sepc company to inspect the tank and feasibility of pumping. Is it a
concrete tank? Is the tank in good working condion? Can a sepc company access
it in the current locaon? How oen would it need pumping and what’s the cost?
Would the cleaning of the outhouse be included in the pumping? Who is going to
clean if pumping is infrequent?
b. Outhouse had 2 stalls. Pending results of (a.), could it be altered to only include a



single stall & would that make it handicap compliant? 
c. The exterior needs either maintenance, replacing, or demo, pending results of (a.)
d. There are several similar outhouses throughout the property and have been
mapped. They’re in various stages of structural failure. Invesgate what type of
system those used (were they pumped?). If none are usable, what to do w/ the
open tanks.
5. Handicap Parking Area
a. Missy said because we already have exisng parking here, if we want to alter it, it
would fall under DEP Permit by Rule Zone.
Per Maine.gov – Permit-by-Rule regulaons apply to certain acvies covered under
the Natural Resources Protecon Act (NRPA). The regulaons idenfy acvies
taking place in or adjacent to wetlands and waterbodies that should not significantly
affect the environment if carried out according to the standards contained in the
regulaons. A person proposing to do work that qualifies for Permit-by-Rule is
required to file noce w/ the Dept. of Environmental Protecons (DEP) instead of
preparing an individual permit applicaon.
6. Waterfront Beach Area
a. Missy referred to the vegetave buffer as “insignificant” and suggested planng.
b. There is a Buffer Handbook Plant List PDF on Maine.gov. Kevin has a nave list. Some
suggesons were birch & blueberry bushes (Missy noted the appeal of these to the
public as Maine icons), and pussy willow. Pierson’s was suggested as a wholesaler. Missy
has an account.
c. Missy menoned the possibility of infiltraon steps edged with vegetaon, to guide
people into the water at intenonal locaons. We noted how there are spots where it is
clear that people are using as entry points.
Infiltraon steps, per NH.gov are “boxed-out, stone-filled steps designed to define
pathways on moderate slopes. They help to reduce erosion, promote infiltraon and are
well suited for shorefront properes.”
d. Missy suggested to start planng 5-10’ behind the top of the slope coming off the
water. She said she can provide a sketch.
e. Suggested items to research – DEP grant, Project Canopy for tree planning, Re-Tree
USA, Parks & Rec Grants for planng. We should also consider whether we want to look
Into a Lake Watershed Survey. Many great resources on Maine.gov DEP, Manuals and
Guides to Reduce Water Polluon.
7. Soggy Spot at entrance to Pines (before the bridge)
a. Missy suggested a stone ord w/ pea stone on top.
8. Pines
a. Dead and down trees need to come out.
b. Research Invasive Plant Management Program from the Maine Forest Service. This
program will provide landowners with a list of trained professionals available for
contracng to assess your property and prepare an Invasive Plant Control Pracce
Plan (IPCPP).
c. We can cut roted stumps back.
d. We can fine mulch the paths – Simpsons in S.Sanford has good conservaons mat’l.



e. Can take up to 10(ish) feet off stuff overhanging the water for what we think are
safety concerns. Missy noted that some overhang is desirable, as leaning trees drop
insects into the water, providing food sources, and provide shading/cooling effects
for certain fish species. Edge areas set the stage for good water quality.
f. We can take dead limbs of any pine, any size. We noted one big pine at the bridge
locaon.
g. We can take all dead standing.
h. Suggested to chip & spread.
i. Missy suggested to thin the compeng red pine – remove every other.
j. Missy suggested to have an entomologist come in and evaluate the red pines for (red
pine scale?). They had this in the red pine stand across the street.
k. Remove witch’s broom from the blueberry bushes.
l. It was noted that we (the town?) should have a forestry management plan. What
happened to the one from 2006 under Project Canopy?
m. Look into having access stairs designed where the make-shi stairs have been placed
at the entry to water. Can make them above ground (like the metal ones at the main
beach) and edge w/ shrubs.
n. Does Girard have a licensed forester?
o. Look into a porta-poty in the pines. Suggested on the other side of the access road
into the pines, across from the trash shed.
p. Roten plaorm needs to be hauled out.
q. We idenfied large quanes of invasive honeysuckle in the area of the “chapel”.
Missy suggested that it would be a good potenal community project to remove it. A
lot of it can be pulled, but more established plants can use a cut stem applicaon
(dabbing cut with a herbicide) in the fall.
r. We did not note any poison ivy along the trail to the “chapel”.
s. I noted “prescripon harvest”, but can’t recall what it was about.
t. Look into having a mber framer evaluate the “chapel” for structural integrity.
u. Is there a potenal for parking for the chapel.
9. Volleyball court
a. We talked about how a court renovaon could produce income. Missy said that she
thinks that a seasonal court rental is roughly $350 per team, or approx. $40pp, or
$20 for High Schoolers.
b. The court size would need to be expanded to meet regulaon play. Net height would
need to be adjustable to accommodate for women’s/coed/men’s leagues.
c. Some type of fence around the court would help to avoid having to chase the ball
into the woods.
10. Hill with old electrical panels & dish.
a. Can it be removed?
b. Lots of poison ivy noted in this area.
c. Look into goats for the poison ivy. Looks like several in the area. Missy menoned
that the ming might not be right based on the locaon. The plant needs to be
leafed out before the goats can be brought in and that might be tough with lots of
kids in the park. Do they all use electric fences?



11. Grills
a. It was suggested that all the grills be removed except for perhaps one or two in best
condion.
b. Mat would know best, how oen do people actually grill? If people were to bring in
their own small camp stove, couldn’t they just set up on the picnic tables? Is there
any need for a pad at all?
c. Old grills already pulled need to be removed from the brush.
12. Maine Conservaon Corps/Americorps
a. Missy suggested to look into these. We provide hosts and they’ll come do the work.
We provide scope of work.
13. Misc.
a. Look up Limington Town Park/Beach Commitee/Lake Associaon.

Notes by Kevin:  Bunganut Park site walk w/ Missy 4-15-2024 
Main Entrance / Atendant Booth Area 
Drainage at main entrance needs to be fixed - causing major washouts across atendant booth and enre parking 
lot down to main 
path to beach. Collecon ditch along Brock Road needs a beter berm to prevent stormwater from running over 
ditch into parking 
lot. 

Stairway from parking lot to lower field 
Aer removal of steps, install several water bars/diverters to reduce washouts 
Diverters can be used/discarded conveyor belts from rock crushers at local gravel pits like dAyton Sand & Gravel 

Playground 
Resurface playground with playground grade woodchips from biz like Beaulieu's Mulchyard on Rt 111 or JA 
Simpsons in Sanford. 
Low area in front of playground needs a French drain / underdrain collecon to lake outlet (which also needs to 
cleaned out / 
unblocked 

Waterfront Beach Area 
The designated pathways to the ideal water entry points can be covered in regular woodchips to be a litle easier to 
walk on than the 
current shredded tree mix. 
In addion to Birches and blueberry plants, other possible trees include weeping willows and some maple variees 
Missy has the nave plant list (not me) 

Pines 
Invasive honeysuckle genrally marked with orange & blue flagging combo 
Dead and dangerous trees all marked with orange flagging 
Pines gameplan: 3 areas to rent 
Pines 1 would be the first large picnic area that has paths to parking across Brock Rd, boardwalk to 
volleyball court and 
bridge to main beach area. Need to figure out the beach area (new steps into water, dock etc) 
Pines 2 would be an expanded picnic area by stone jety (including jety for fishing, photos etc). 
Pines 3 would be chapel and surrounding area. Potenal for dock below chapel. 
Volleyball Court 
From Google: 
The official dimensions for a regulaon volleyball court are 59 feet long by 29 feet 6 inches wide, or 1,743 square 
feet. The court 



should also have a safe zone around the perimeter that's at least 10 feet wide. 
Looks like we can fit 2 regulaon courts side by side with minimal re-work (black outline=exisng sand area) 

Missy recommended beter sand surface and smoothed out 
Temporary/collapsible safety fence around perimeter 
My personal suggeson aer watching lots of volleyball on TV is also figure out a way to mark the court 
sidelines for 
inbounds/out of bounds calls if these were to be rented out. 

QUESTIONS / ANSWERS - HW 
Who uses the field besides Massabesic Soccer? Here's what I think is 
correct: 
o Softball league – Massabesic Little League
o SMASH - HomeSchool League (new)
o Sanford YMCA
o Others?
- Massabesic Little League – was previously called Alfred / Lyman Little
League
- Massabesic United Soccer Club
- - SMASH I believe is not new – they have used the fields for multiple years
Smash started using the field last year. So far there are no others that use the
fields
What's the name of the Softball league and have they ever paid/donated
funds for field use?
Massabesic Little League – Previously called Alfred/Lyman Little League – As
far as a donation to the town – that is not something the current board is
aware of.It does sound like there was some sort of donation made years ago,
we are still trying to track down a record of that. It could have
been many years ago – prior to the change from Alfred-Lyman Little League
to Massabesic Little League, possibly prior to the sale of Bernier. MLL pays
for the landscaping and maintenance of the softball field at Bunganut and is
willing to do the same at Chadbourne.
Massabesic United Soccer Club - Around 2015 MUSC donated $2,000 for the
Sprinkler System. In 2021 there was an $1000 donation sent. There was no
donation sent in 2022 as there was no treasurer for a period. Then in 2023
there was $1,000 sent in Spring (to make up for 2022) and $1,000 sent in
fall. We were under the impression that there would be improvements made
to the facilities and parking. This past fall MUSC paid $600 towards the
replacement of the broken gate.
How many total hours does the soccer league use the field, including games
& practices? Softball? SMASH?
Massabesic United Soccer Club – Bunganut Soccer fields are used for
practices from mid-August through mid-October. Typically, there are multiple



teams there for practices 5 weeknights from about 5 – 8 pm and is 
used Saturdays for recreation games from about 8am – 3pm and Sundays for 
Travel games for about 3 hours on average. (Depending on the week) 
Massabesic Little League – Bunganut is used for practices/ games 4 – 6 days 
a week during the season (April 22 – June 10th) – I’d say 10 hours a 
week. Typically, most used by our softball division – once in a while by T Ball. 
Smash has requested the field Monday thru Friday 10-2 April 15 to June 15 
How many kids are in the soccer league? Softball? SMASH? 
In 2023 there were 200 Recreation players for Massabesic 
United Soccer – 
In 2023 there were 90 Travel Players for Massabesic United Soccer – 
In 2023 & 2024 there were about 440 kids in Massabesic Little League 
(That is Baseball & Softball) 
Approximately how many kids from Lyman play 
Soccer? Softball? SMASH? 
Massabesic United Soccer Club (MUSC) – 
In 2023 – there were 17 players from Lyman in the Travel program 
for MUSC 
In 2023 – there were 45 players from Lyman in our Recreation program 
for MUSC 
Massabesic Little League (MLL) – 
Currently enrolled in our league there are 86 Lyman Residents out of 446 
total registered players. This year, Lyman has the most registered players 
out of the entire district. 
What does it cost for a child to play in the soccer league & what does that fee 
cover? Softball? SMASH? 
MUSC - The recreation registration cost ranges from $50 - $115 depending 
upon division. This covers the cost to play, ref fees, insurance, registration 
with Soccer Maine, field equipment, and uniform. 
MLL - The registration cost for MLL is $55-$85 depending upon which division 
– registration includes - cost to play, registration with Little League
International, Insurance that covers all player, equipment, and uniform.
With respect to the Little League using Chadbourne, the same questions
apply - how often will the field be used for games & practices?
Years ago, prior to the sale of Bernier – MLL was informed that since we
would potentially lose the use of Bernier – that the town was happy to provide
another field in townfor us to utilize. My goal in revitalizing Chadbourne Field
is to add another option for field availability for the southern part of our district.
It is difficult for many families to drive to Limerick for practices or games every
night of the week. MLL intends to make Chadbourne into a dirt field so that it
can be utilized by multiple different age groups and divisions. (T Ball, Softball,



Baseball, and our newest addition, The Challenger League – Little Leagues 
adaptive baseball program for individuals with physical and intellectual 
challenges.) From what I could find, the Chadbourne Field has not been used 
by a Babe Ruth League since the late 90’s. How often it would be used is 
unknown at this point, it will depend upon when we are able to utilize it. Once 
it is up and running the hope would be to utilize it for multiple practices a 
week. It would be used more for games if there were a scoreboard there. 
Have the signs on the ball field side always been a fundraiser for the 
Massabesic soccer league? 
It has always been an option, but it is not something with major success – 
MUSC puts up less than 10 signs per season. Some years are 4 signs, some 
years 5 signs – it all depends on sponsorship levels. Some sponsors choose 
to sponsor a team and some sponsor a sign etc. 
Does all concession stand revenue go to the soccer league? 
Yes and no – The concession revenue is split – profit on select items (Drinks, 
chips, candy) go to the club – while the profit of other items (Breakfast 
sandwiches, burgers, hot dogs) goes to the team that oversees selling that 
weekend. Everything in the snack shack is MUSC’s – The fridge, the freezer, 
the grill, the water bubbler etc. 
Most teams use their profit to purchase jackets or sweatshirts for the team. 
MUSC deep cleans the concession stand before each season and at the end 
of each season. 
The majority of concession stand repairs are done by MUSC 
Are there any other fields in Lyman that are used for organized sports, 
besides Bunganut & Chadbourne? Lindsay mentioned 2 acres off 
Grasshopper Lane that are available to the town. 
Those are the only two that are town fields, teams use Bernier field and some 
practice at Lyman Elementary 
Are the fields open to the public for free when league play is not in use? 
A few notes from MUSC – We are a non-profit organization. Our league is in 
place to provide opportunities for the youth of our district to learn the sport of 
soccer in a positive environment as well as grow the love of the sport in hopes 
that it will over time feed players into the high school level. While we 
understand the cost the Town of Lyman must incur to maintain such a 
beautiful field as Bunganut – we also hope that the town understands that we 
operate just about a zero-budget year to year. We donate to the High 
School teams, provide dozens of scholarships for kids to play for free, we 
clean the snack shack twice a year, and we are always willing to pay for the 
upkeep/repair of the field. All extra costs that the club has will usually be 
passed on to families. 
Notes from MLL - We recently just spent a good amount of time installing new 



benches at Bunganut that were donated by the Snowmobile Club. We also 
spend a lot of time each year on the maintenance and upkeep around the 
softball field so that it is in presentable shape. Many times, the area around 
the bleachers is un sittable and parents and spectators need to sit in the 
outfield. 
I have let Lindsey know that we need to clear around the bleachers and the 
fence- lots of pruckerbrush 
Chadbourne field- we try to keep the gate unlocked so people can use that 
field 
Same with Bunganut- we try to keep the gate unlocked but that is not always 
successful 
QUESTIONS / ANSWERS 
Who uses the field besides Massabesic Soccer? Here's what I think is correct: 
o Softball league – Massabesic Little League

o SMASH - HomeSchool League (new)

o Sanford YMCA

o Others?

- Massabesic Little League – was previously called Alfred / Lyman Little
League
- Massabesic United Soccer Club
- - SMASH I believe is not new – they have used the fields for multiple years
What's the name of the Softball league and have they ever paid/donated funds for field
use?
Massabesic Little League – Previously called Alfred/Lyman Little League – As far as a
donation to the town – that is not something the current board is aware of. It does sound
like there was some sort of donation made years ago, we are still trying to track down a
record of that. It could have been many years ago – prior to the change from Alfred-
Lyman Little League to Massabesic Little League, possibly prior to the sale of Bernier.
MLL pays for the landscaping and maintenance of the softball field at Bunganut and is
willing to do the same at Chadbourne.
Massabesic United Soccer Club - Around 2015 MUSC donated $2,000 for the Sprinkler
System. In 2021 there was an $1000 donation sent. There was no donation sent in
2022 as there was no treasurer for a period. Then in 2023 there was $1,000 sent in
Spring (to make up for 2022) and $1,000 sent in fall. We were under the impression
that there would be improvements made to the facilities and parking. This past fall
MUSC paid $600 towards the replacement of the broken gate.
How many total hours does the soccer league use the field, including games &
practices? Softball? SMASH?
Massabesic United Soccer Club – Bunganut Soccer fields are used for practices from
mid-August through mid-October. Typically, there are multiple teams there for practices
5 weeknights from about 5 – 8 pm and is used Saturdays for recreation games from
about 8am – 3pm and Sundays for Travel games for about 3 hours on average.
(Depending on the week)
Massabesic Little League – Bunganut is used for practices / games 4 – 6 days a week
during the season (April 22 – June 10th) – I’d say 10 hours a week. Typically, most used



by our softball division – once in a while by T Ball. 
How many kids are in the soccer league? Softball? SMASH? 
In 2023 there were 200 Recreation players for Massabesic United Soccer – 
In 2023 there were 90 Travel Players for Massabesic United Soccer – 
In 2023 & 2024 there were about 440 kids in Massabesic Little League (That is 
Baseball & Softball) 
Approximately how many kids from Lyman play Soccer? Softball? SMASH? 
Massabesic United Soccer Club (MUSC) – 
In 2023 – there were 17 players from Lyman in the Travel program for MUSC 
In 2023 – there were 45 players from Lyman in our Recreation program for MUSC 
Massabesic Little League (MLL) – 
Currently enrolled in our league there are 86 Lyman Residents out of 446 total 
registered players. This year, Lyman has the most registered players out of the 
entire district. 
What does it cost for a child to play in the soccer league & what does that fee 
cover? Softball? SMASH? 
MUSC - The recreation registration cost ranges from $50 - $115 depending upon 
division. This covers the cost to play, ref fees, insurance, registration with Soccer 
Maine, field equipment, and uniform. 
MLL - The registration cost for MLL is $55-$85 depending upon which division – 
registration includes - cost to play, registration with Little League International, 
Insurance that covers all player, equipment, and uniform. 
With respect to the Little League using Chadbourne, the same questions apply - how 
often will the field be used for games & practices? 
Years ago, prior to the sale of Bernier – MLL was informed that since we would 
potentially lose the use of Bernier – that the town was happy to provide another field in 
town for us to utilize. My goal in revitalizing Chadbourne Field is to add another option 
for field availability for the southern part of our district. It is difficult for many families to 
drive to Limerick for practices or games every night of the week. MLL intends to make 
Chadbourne into a dirt field so that it can be utilized by multiple different age groups and 
divisions. (T Ball, Softball, Baseball, and our newest addition, The Challenger League – 
Little Leagues adaptive baseball program for individuals with physical and intellectual 
challenges.) From what I could find, the Chadbourne Field has not been used by a Babe 
Ruth League since the late 90’s. How often it would be used is unknown at this point, it 
will depend upon when we are able to utilize it. Once it is up and running the hope 
would be to utilize it for multiple practices a week. It would be used more for games if 
there were a scoreboard there. 
Have the signs on the ball field side always been a fundraiser for the Massabesic 
soccer league? 
It has always been an option, but it is not something with major success – MUSC puts 
up less than 10 signs per season. Some years are 4 signs, some years 5 signs – it all 
depends on sponsorship levels. Some sponsors choose to sponsor a team and some 
sponsor a sign etc. 
Does all concession stand revenue go to the soccer league? 
Yes and no – The concession revenue is split – profit on select items (Drinks, chips, 
candy) go to the club – while the profit of other items (Breakfast sandwiches, burgers, 



hot dogs) goes to the team that oversees selling that weekend. Everything in the snack 
shack is MUSC’s – The fridge, the freezer, the grill, the water bubbler etc. 
Most teams use their profit to purchase jackets or sweatshirts for the team. 
MUSC deep cleans the concession stand before each season and at the end of each 
season. 
The majority of concession stand repairs are done by MUSC 
Are there any other fields in Lyman that are used for organized sports, besides 
Bunganut & Chadbourne? Lindsay mentioned 2 acres off Grasshopper Lane that are 
available to the town. 
Are the fields open to the public for free when league play is not in use? 
A few notes from MUSC – We are a non-profit organization. Our league is in place to 
provide opportunities for the youth of our district to learn the sport of soccer in a positive 
environment as well as grow the love of the sport in hopes that it will over time feed 
players into the high school level. While we understand the cost the Town of Lyman 
must incur to maintain such a beautiful field as Bunganut – we also hope that the town 
understands that we operate just about a zero-budget year to year. We donate to the 
High School teams, provide dozens of scholarships for kids to play for free, we clean 
the snack shack twice a year, and we are always willing to pay for the upkeep/repair of 
the field. All extra costs that the club has will usually be passed on to families. 
Notes from MLL - We recently just spent a good amount of time installing new benches 
at Bunganut that were donated by the Snowmobile Club. We also spend a lot of time 
each year on the maintenance and upkeep around the softball field so that it is in 
presentable shape. Many times, the area around the bleachers is un sittable and 
parents and spectators need to sit in the outfield. 



4" Underdrain
With 3/4" Stone

Low Area Needing Approx 12" to 18" Fill
Existing Elevation Only 7" Above Lake Level

Outlet to Lake
(Blocked)

Boggy Area By Playground

Potential Sand Reclamation for Beach Area

Existing Eroded Sand Area

Pines
Beaches

Main Swim Area



Discontinue
Dangerous
Stair Access

New Main
Access
Needs
Reclaim
Material



Volleyball

Gate

Dumpster

New Portable

Safety Fence

Net
Net

Existing Sand Court

New Court Arrangement

Wet Area

Brock R
d



The ORC has been working on the process to get the Updated Floodplain Management 

Ordinance to the voters for the November Election. However, the new updates will go in effect 

July 17th, 2024, and without the ordinance enacted, the Town would be at risk of losing 

emergency funding as well as other liabilities.  

The Select Board can enact an emergency ordinance until the ordinance goes to the voters in 

November. Legal council has advised the board could re-enact it after the 90 day period as there 

will be a short gap until the next November election.  

Article I of the updated ordinance – Purpose and Establishment - also covers Lyman as being 

part of the NFIP and the Towns authority to adopt land use and control measures to reduce future 

flood insurance losses pursuant to Title 30-A §3001-3007, 4352, 4401-4407, and 38 M.R.S.A 

section 440 

Also attached is what happens if the Town is suspended from the NFIP – National Flood 
Insurance Program. The Town would not be able to get federal disaster relief, among other 
things, if it is not NFIP complaint. Homeowners also would not be able to get flood insurance or 
their policies will not be renewed if they already have flood insurance. 

Below is more information about the floodplain management updates and emergency ordinance 
enactment process.  

Municipal Charter.  

3.13 - Emergency Ordinances 

The Board may, by an affirmative vote of at least three (3) members, pass emergency ordinances, 

to take effect at the time indicated therein, to meet public emergencies effecting life, health, 

destruction of property or civil disturbance. Such emergency ordinances shall contain a section in 

which the emergency is set forth and defined. At least three (3) members of the Board must 

support the declaration of such emergency. Within five (5) days after passage, such ordinance 

shall be posted at the Town Hall and such other places as the Board may designate, and a 

statement of the general subject matter shall be published in a newspaper, or newspapers, having 

general circulation in the Town. No public hearing or notice thereof shall be required prior to the 

passage of an emergency ordinance. Every emergency ordinance shall automatically stand 

repealed as of the 91st day following the date on which it was adopted, unless terminated sooner. 

ITEM #7: (a.) Floodplain Ordinance Updates

https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/38/title38sec440.html
https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/38/title38sec440.html








C:\Users\Selectboard\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\D6LAUOH4\!22 

InstructionsToAdopt.doc 

1 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING AND ADOPTING THE 

MODEL FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE 

The enclosed model Floodplain Management Ordinance has been customized, as much as possible, for 

your community.  The Ordinance provided usually designates either the Code Enforcement Officer or the 

Planning Board as the permitting authority.  We customized it according to the ordinance currently in effect for 

your community.  Please review this document carefully and notify us of any errors. If the community would 

like to change the permitting authority or make any other changes to the ordinance, please contact the Floodplain 

Management Program as we can easily make most changes for you.  If any changes are made locally to the 

model ordinance, please submit the ordinance to Floodplain Management Staff prior to any public hearing.  

It is critical that we review the proposed changes to be certain they are consistent with the minimum 

Federal requirements for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and state 

standards.  

In Article IV, the amount of the application fee is strictly a local option but should be sufficient to cover 

the costs for administering and enforcing this ordinance.  It is recommended that the Flood Hazard Development 

Permit fee be $50.00 for new construction and substantial improvement and $25.00 for minor development.  It is 

also acceptable to insert language allowing the Board of Selectmen or the municipal Council to establish the fees 

annually. 

  When using a model floodplain management ordinance, make sure all blanks are filled in prior to enacting 

the ordinance, and that the ordinance references the most current Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and Flood 

Insurance Study (FIS) dates, or Flood Hazard Boundary Map date. 

  The floodplain management ordinance must be adopted in accordance with MRSA Title 30-A § 4352.  

To enact the floodplain management ordinance, a public hearing to allow for citizen input and comments on 

the proposed ordinance is required prior to enactment.   

In accordance with the above MRSA title, Maine law requires that the municipal reviewing authority 

must post and publish notice of the required public hearing to meet the following two provisions:  “A) The 

notice must be posted in the municipal office at least 13 days before the public hearing; B) The notice must be 

published at least 2 times in a newspaper that complies with Title 1, section 601 and that has a general 

circulation in the municipality. The date of the first publication must be at least 12 days before the hearing 

and the date of the 2nd publication must be at least 7 days before the hearing. That notice must be written in 

plain English, understandable by the average citizen.”  

          Following the public hearing, the proposed ordinance shall be attested and posted in the manner provided 

for town meetings.  One copy of the proposed ordinance shall be certified by the municipal officers to the municipal 

clerk at least seven days prior to the day of meeting to be preserved as a public record.  Copies shall be available at 

that time for distribution to the voters by the municipal clerk as well as at the time of the town meeting.  

The subject matter of the proposed ordinance shall be reduced to the question: “Shall an ordinance entitled 

‘Floodplain Management Ordinance’ be enacted?” and shall be submitted to the town meeting for action either 

as an article in the warrant or a question on a secret ballot.  It is always recommended that the ordinance in effect be 

repealed and replaced with the new ordinance. 

Adoption of New FEMA Maps 

Some communities have expressed concern about adopting maps that do not become effective until several months 

after they are adopted.  Please note that is acceptable for the community to set the effective date of the ordinance to 

coincide with the day the new maps become effective. 



C:\Users\Selectboard\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\D6LAUOH4\!22 

InstructionsToAdopt.doc 

2 

(continue reading on page 2) 

Upon adoption of a floodplain management ordinance, two complete copies certified as “A True Copy” by 

the municipal clerk, must be sent to the Maine Floodplain Management Program, Dept. of Agriculture, 

Conservation & Forestry, 93 SHS, 17 Elkins Lane, Augusta, ME 04333-0093. If possible, please e-mail us an 

electronic copy of the ordinance. 

Joining the NFIP 

When a community is first applying to join the NFIP, a resolution to join the Program must be adopted.  We will 

provide the Resolution. The Resolution must be entered as a separate question on the warrant/ballot item and can be 

worded as follows: “Shall a resolution entitled ‘Resolution for Applying for Flood Insurance’ be adopted?”  

An application form must also be completed, however, that is not a town meeting action item. 

If you have any questions in regard to the above or need additional assistance, please call or  e-mail the Maine 

Floodplain Management Program: 

Sue Baker, State Coordinator 287-8063 sue.baker@maine.gov

Janet Parker, Planner II 287-9981 janet.parker@maine.gov

mailto:sue.baker@maine.gov
mailto:janet.parker@maine.gov


https://lymanme-my.sharepoint.com/personal/townmanager_lyman-me_gov/Documents/Desktop/Lindsay/Agenda Packets & 

Payable Warrants/Agenda Packets/!22 Alt-Fee.doc 

Alternate Language for State Model Floodplain Management Ordinance 

Article IV – Application FEE 

In recognition of the varying degree of difficulty and amounts of time required for reviewing and processing 

flood hazard development permit applications, some communities are inserting language for a split or sliding 

fee schedule. 

Some communities already have fee structures in other ordinances that are set according to the value of the 

proposed project. In order to promote consistency between their ordinances they might choose to adopt a similar 

fee structure for the floodplain ordinance.  Other communities want the flexibility of allowing their Board of 

Selectmen to reassess and establish fees annually, without specifying the exact amount within the ordinance.  

Many communities simply assess a larger fee for new construction or substantial improvement projects (which 

often require more time and effort to review) and a smaller fee for all other (minor) projects. 

Some options may be: 

1. Assess a fee that is a percentage of the proposed project value, (i.e. 1%/$1000)

2. Set fees according to monetary thresholds based on the value of the proposed project

Examples:

$10 - project value  $1,000

$20 - project value  $1,000 but  $10,000

$30 - project value  $10,000 but  $25,000

$40 - project value  $25,000 but  $50,000

$50 - project value  $50,000

3. Split Fee Example:

A nonrefundable application fee of $25 for minor development or $50 for new construction or

substantial improvements shall be paid to the City/Town Clerk and a copy of a receipt for the

same shall accompany the application.

4. Allowing the Board of Selectman to annually establish a fee.

Example:

A nonrefundable application fee, as established annually by the Board of Selectmen shall be paid to the

City/Town Clerk and a copy of a receipt for the same shall accompany the application.

5. Some larger towns or cities may want to consider assessing fees based on the amount of time required to

process the application.

Ex ample:

Applications shall be submitted to the Town Clerk accompanied by the prescribed application

fee. The application fee shall be determined by the Board of Selectmen upon recommendation of

the Planning of Board. The fee shall be designed to approximate the costs incurred by the Town

for administering the ordinance. Upon receipt of an application and the required fee, the Town

Clerk will stamp the application with the date of receipt and forward the application to the Code

Enforcement Offer.



Approved this _________ day of __________________, 2024. 

This Ordinance will be effective: _______________________ 

   Date 

Town of Lyman, by its Selectboard 

________________________Ralph Blackington 

________________________Thomas Hatch 

________________________Jessica Picard 

________________________Amber Swett 

________________________Victoria Gavel 

DRA
FT



1 

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE 

FOR THE 

TOWN OF LYMAN, MAINE 

ENACTED:  ____________________ 
 Date 

EFFECTIVE:   ____________________ 
 Date 

CERTIFIED BY:   ____________________ 
 Signature 

CERTIFIED BY:   ____________________ 
 Print Name 

 ____________________ 
 Title      Affix Seal DRA

FT



2 

 
 
 
 

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE      
 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 
ARTICLE           PAGE 
 
 
I. PURPOSE AND ESTABLISHMENT ................................................................................ 2 
 
II. PERMIT REQUIRED ......................................................................................................... 2 
 
III. APPLICATION FOR PERMIT .......................................................................................... 2 
 
IV. APPLICATION FEE AND EXPERT'S FEE...................................................................... 4 
 
V. REVIEW STANDARDS FOR FLOOD HAZARD DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
 APPLICATIONS ................................................................................................................ 4 
 
VI. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS ...................................................................................... 5 
 
VII. CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE ................................................................................ 11 
 
VIII. REVIEW OF SUBDIVISIONS AND DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS ........................ 11 
 
IX. APPEALS AND VARIANCES ........................................................................................ 12 
 
X. ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES ............................................................................. 14 
 
XI. VALIDITY AND SEVERABILITY ................................................................................ 14 
 
XII. CONFLICT WITH OTHER ORDINANCES ................................................................... 14 
 
XIII. DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................. 15  
 
XIV. ABROGATION ................................................................................................................ 19 
 
XV. DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY……………………………………………………….…19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRA
FT



3 

60.3(c) Rev. 8/23 
Prepared on 12/15/2023 by DACF/JP 

DRA
FT



4 

ARTICLE I - PURPOSE AND ESTABLISHMENT 
 
Certain areas of the Town of Lyman, Maine are subject to periodic flooding, causing serious damages to 
properties within these areas.  Relief is available in the form of flood insurance as authorized by the 
National Flood Insurance Act of 1968. 
 
Therefore, the Town of Lyman, Maine has chosen to become a participating community in the National 
Flood Insurance Program and agrees to comply with the requirements of the National Flood Insurance Act 
of 1968 (P.L. 90-488, as amended) as delineated in this Floodplain Management Ordinance. 
 
It is the intent of the Town of Lyman, Maine to require the recognition and evaluation of flood hazards in 
all official actions relating to land use in the floodplain areas having special flood hazards. 
 
The Town of Lyman has the legal authority to adopt land use and control measures to reduce future flood 
losses pursuant to Title 30-A MRSA, Sections 3001-3007, 4352, 4401-4407, and Title 38 MRSA, Section 
440. 
 
The National Flood Insurance Program, established in the aforesaid Act, provides that areas of the Town 
of Lyman having a special flood hazard be identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency and 
that floodplain management measures be applied in such flood hazard areas.  This Ordinance establishes a 
Flood Hazard Development Permit system and review procedure for development activities in the 
designated flood hazard areas of the Town of Lyman, Maine. 
 
The areas of special flood hazard, Zones A, AE, and AH for the Town of Lyman, York County, Maine, 

identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency in a report entitled “Flood Insurance Study – 

York County, Maine,” dated July 17, 2024, with accompanying “Flood Insurance Rate Map” dated July 

17, 2024, are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this Ordinance. 
 
ARTICLE II - PERMIT REQUIRED 
 
The Code Enforcement Officer shall be designated as the local Floodplain Administrator. The Floodplain 
Administrator shall have the authority to implement the commitment made to administer and enforce the 
requirements for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program. 
 
Before any construction or other development (as defined in Article XIII), including the placement of 
manufactured homes, begins within any areas of special flood hazard established in Article I, a Flood 
Hazard Development Permit shall be obtained from the Code Enforcement Officer.  This permit shall be 
in addition to any other permits which may be required pursuant to the codes and ordinances of the Town 
of Lyman, Maine. 
 
ARTICLE III - APPLICATION FOR PERMIT 
 
The application for a Flood Hazard Development Permit shall be submitted to the Code Enforcement 
Officer and shall include: 
 
A. The name, address, and phone number of the applicant, owner, and contractor; 
 
B. An address and a map indicating the location of the construction site; 
 
C. A site plan showing locations of existing and/or proposed development, including but not limited to 

structures, sewage disposal facilities, water supply facilities, areas to be cut and filled, and lot 
dimensions; 

DRA
FT



5 

 
D. A statement of the intended use of the structure and/or development; 
 
E. A statement of the cost of the development including all materials and labor; 
 
F. A statement as to the type of sewage system proposed; 
 
G. Specification of dimensions of the proposed structure and/or development; 
 
[Items H-K.2. apply only to new construction and substantial improvements.] 
 
H. The elevation in relation to the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD), North American Vertical 

Datum (NAVD), or to a locally established datum in Zone A only, of the: 
 
 1. base flood at the proposed site of all new or substantially improved structures, which is 

determined: 
 
  a. in Zone AE from data contained in the "Flood Insurance Study - York County, Maine," as 

described in Article I; or, 
 
  b. in Zone A: 
 

(1) from any base flood elevation data from federal, state, or other technical sources (such 

as FEMA’s Quick-2 model, FEMA 265), including information obtained pursuant to 

Article VI.M. and VIII.D.; or, 

 
  (2)   in the absence of all data described in Article III.H.1.b.(1), information to demonstrate 

that the structure shall meet the elevation requirement in Article VI.H.2.b., Article 
VI.I.2.a. or b., or Article VI.J.2.b. 

 
 2. highest and lowest grades at the site adjacent to the walls of the proposed building; 
 
 3.  lowest floor, including basement; and whether or not such structures contain a basement; 
 
 4. lowest machinery and equipment servicing the building; and, 
 
 5. level, in the case of non-residential structures only, to which the structure will be floodproofed. 
 
I. A description of an elevation reference point established on the site of all developments for which 

elevation standards apply as required in Article VI; 
 
J. A written certification by: 
 

1. a Professional Land Surveyor that the grade elevations shown on the application are accurate; 
and, 

 
2. a Professional Land Surveyor, registered professional engineer or architect that the base flood 

elevation shown on the application is accurate. 
 
K. The following certifications as required in Article VI by a registered professional engineer or 

architect: 
 

DRA
FT



6 

1. a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form FF-206-FY-22-153, as amended), to verify that the 
floodproofing methods for any non-residential structures will meet the floodproofing criteria of 
Article VI.I.; and other applicable standards in Article VI; 

 
 2. a Hydraulic Openings Certificate to verify that engineered hydraulic openings in foundation 

walls will meet the standards of Article VI.N.2.a.; 
 
 3. a certified statement that bridges will meet the standards of Article VI.O.; 
 
 4. a certified statement that containment walls will meet the standards of Article VI.P. 
 
L. A description of the extent to which any water course will be altered or relocated as a result of the 

proposed development; and, 
 
M. A statement of construction plans describing in detail how each applicable development standard in 

Article VI will be met. 
 
ARTICLE IV - APPLICATION FEE AND EXPERT'S FEE 
 
A non-refundable application fee of $________ shall be paid to the Town Clerk and a copy of a receipt 
for the same shall accompany the application. 
 
An additional fee may be charged if the Code Enforcement Officer, Planning Board, and/or Board of 
Appeals needs the assistance of a professional engineer or other expert.  The expert's fee shall be paid in 
full by the applicant within 10 days after the town submits a bill to the applicant.  Failure to pay the bill 
shall constitute a violation of the ordinance and be grounds for the issuance of a stop work order.  An 
expert shall not be hired by the municipality at the expense of an applicant until the applicant has either 
consented to such hiring in writing or been given an opportunity to be heard on the subject.  An applicant 
who is dissatisfied with a decision to hire expert assistance may appeal that decision to the Board of 
Appeals. 
 
ARTICLE V - REVIEW STANDARDS FOR FLOOD HAZARD DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
APPLICATIONS 
 
The Code Enforcement Officer shall: 
 
A. Review all applications for the Flood Hazard Development Permit to assure that proposed 

developments are reasonably safe from flooding and to determine that all pertinent requirements of 
Article VI (Development Standards) have been, or will be met; 

 
B. Utilize, in the review of all Flood Hazard Development Permit applications: 
 

1. the base flood and floodway data contained in the "Flood Insurance Study - York County, 
Maine," as described in Article I; 

 
 2. in special flood hazard areas where base flood elevation and floodway data are not provided, the 

Code Enforcement Officer shall obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any base flood elevation 
and floodway data from federal, state, or other technical sources, including information obtained 
pursuant to Article III.H.1.b.(1); Article VI.M.; and Article VIII.D., in order to administer Article 
VI of this Ordinance; and, 

 

DRA
FT



7 

 3. when the community establishes a base flood elevation in a Zone A by methods outlined in 
Article III.H.1.b.(1), the community shall submit that data to the Maine Floodplain Management 
Program. 

 
C. Make interpretations of the location of boundaries of special flood hazard areas shown on the maps 

described in Article I of this Ordinance; 
 
D. In the review of Flood Hazard Development Permit applications, determine that all necessary permits 

have been obtained from those federal, state, and local government agencies from which prior 
approval is required by federal or state law, including but not limited to Section 404 of the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1344; 

 
E. Notify adjacent municipalities, the Department of Environmental Protection, and the Maine 

Floodplain Management Program prior to any alteration or relocation of a water course and submit 
copies of such notifications to the Federal Emergency Management Agency; 

 
F. If the application satisfies the requirements of this Ordinance, approve the issuance of one of the 

following Flood Hazard Development Permits based on the type of development: 
 
 1. A two part Flood Hazard Development Permit for elevated structures.  Part I shall authorize the 

applicant to build a structure to and including the first horizontal floor only above the base flood 
level.  At that time the applicant shall provide the Code Enforcement Officer with an “under 
construction” Elevation Certificate completed by a Professional Land Surveyor based on the Part 
I permit construction for verifying compliance with the elevation requirements of Article VI, 
paragraphs H., I., or J.  Following review of the Elevation Certificate data, which shall take place 
within 72 hours of receipt of the application, the Code Enforcement Officer shall issue Part II of 
the Flood Hazard Development Permit.  Part II shall authorize the applicant to complete the 
construction project; or, 

 
 2. A Flood Hazard Development Permit for Floodproofing of Non-Residential Structures that are 

new construction or substantially improved non-residential structures that are not being elevated 
but that meet the floodproofing standards of Article VI.I.1.  The application for this permit shall 
include a Floodproofing Certificate signed by a registered professional engineer or architect; or, 

 
 3. A Flood Hazard Development Permit for Minor Development for all development that is not new 

construction or a substantial improvement, such as repairs, maintenance, renovations, or 
additions, whose value is less than 50% of the market value of the structure.  Minor development 
also includes but is not limited to: accessory structures as provided for in Article VI.L., mining, 
dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation, drilling operations, storage of equipment or 
materials, deposition or extraction of materials, public or private sewage disposal systems or 
water supply facilities that do not involve structures; and non-structural projects such as bridges, 
dams, towers, fencing, pipelines, wharves, and piers. 

 
G. Maintain, as a permanent record, copies of all Flood Hazard Development Permit Applications, 

corresponding Permits issued, and data relevant thereto, including reports of the Board of Appeals on 

variances granted under the provisions of Article IX of this Ordinance, and copies of Elevation 

Certificates, Floodproofing Certificates, Certificates of Compliance, and certifications of design 

standards required under the provisions of Articles III, VI, and VII of this Ordinance. 
 
ARTICLE VI - DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
All developments in areas of special flood hazard shall meet the following applicable standards: 

DRA
FT



8 

 
A. All Development  -  All development shall: 
 
 1. be designed or modified and adequately anchored to prevent flotation (excluding piers and 

docks), collapse, or lateral movement of the development resulting from hydrodynamic and 
hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy; 

 
 2. use construction materials that are resistant to flood damage; 
 
 3. use construction methods and practices that will minimize flood damage; and, 
 
 4. use electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air conditioning equipment, and other service 

facilities, that are designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating 
within the components during flooding conditions. 

 
B. Water Supply  -  All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or 

eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the systems. 
 
C. Sanitary Sewage Systems  -  All new and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed 

and located to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system and discharges from 
the system into flood waters. 

 
D. On Site Waste Disposal Systems  -  On site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed 

to avoid impairment to them or contamination from them during floods. 
 
E. Watercourse Carrying Capacity  -  All development associated with altered or relocated portions of 

a watercourse shall be constructed and maintained in such a manner that no reduction occurs in the 
flood carrying capacity of the watercourse. 

 
F.  Utilities  -  New construction or substantial improvement of any structure (including manufactured 

homes) located within Zones A, AE, and AH shall have the bottom of all electrical, heating, 

plumbing, ventilation and air conditioning equipment, permanent fixtures and components, HVAC 

ductwork and duct systems, and any other utility service equipment, facilities, machinery, or 

connections servicing a structure, elevated to at least one foot above the base flood elevation. 

 

G. Physical Changes to the Natural Landscape  -  Certain development projects, including but not 

limited to, retaining walls, sea walls, levees, berms, and rip rap, can cause physical changes that 

affect flooding conditions.  

 

1. All development projects in Zone AE that cause physical changes to the natural landscape shall 

be reviewed by a Professional Engineer to determine whether or not the project changes the base 

flood elevation, zone, and/or the flood hazard boundary line. 

 

2.  

a. If the Professional Engineer determines, through the use of engineering judgement, that the 

project would not necessitate a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR), a certified statement shall 

be provided. 

 

b. If the Professional Engineer determines that the project may cause a change, a hydrologic 

and hydraulic analysis that meets current FEMA standards shall be performed.  

 

DRA
FT



9 

3. If the hydrologic and hydraulic analysis performed indicates a change to the base flood elevation, 

zone, and/or the flood hazard boundary line, the applicant may submit a Conditional Letter of 

Map Revision (C-LOMR) request to the Federal Emergency Management Agency for assurance 

that the as-built project will result in a change to the Flood Insurance Rate Map. Once the 

development is completed, a request for a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) shall be initiated. 

 

4. If the hydrologic and hydraulic analysis performed show a change to the base flood elevation, 

zone, and/or the flood hazard boundary line, as soon as practicable, but no later than 6 months 

after the completion of the project, the applicant shall submit the technical data to FEMA in the 

form of a Letter of Map Revision request. 
 
H. Residential  -  New construction or substantial improvement of any residential structure located 

within: 
 

1. Zone AE and AH shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to at least one foot 
above the base flood elevation. 

 
2. Zone AH shall have adequate drainage paths around structures on slopes, to guide floodwater 

away from the proposed structures. 
 

3. Zone A shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated: 
 

a. to at least one foot above the base flood elevation utilizing information obtained pursuant to 

Article III.H.1.b.(1); Article V.B.; or Article VIII.D.; or, 

 

 b. in the absence of all data described in Article VI.H.3.a., to at least two feet above the highest 

adjacent grade to the structure. 

 

I.  Non-Residential  -  New construction or substantial improvement of any non-residential structure 

located within: 
 
 1. Zone AE and AH shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to at least one foot 

above the base flood elevation, or together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities shall: 
 
  a. be floodproofed to at least one foot above the base flood elevation so that below that 

elevation the structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of 
water; 

 
  b. have structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and the 

effects of buoyancy; and, 
 

b. be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect that the floodproofing design 
and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice for 
meeting the provisions of this section.  Such certification shall be provided with the 
application for a Flood Hazard Development Permit, as required by Article III.K. and shall 
include a record of the elevation above mean sea level to which the structure is 
floodproofed. 

 
 2. Zone AH shall have adequate drainage paths around structures on slopes, to guide floodwater 

away from the proposed structures. 
 

DRA
FT



10 

 
 
 3. Zone A shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated: 
 
  a. to at least one foot above the base flood elevation utilizing information obtained pursuant to 

 Article III.H.1.b.(1); Article V.B.; Article VIII.D.; or, 
 
 b. in the absence of all data described in Article VI.I.3.a., to at least two feet above the highest 

adjacent grade to the structure; or, 
 
  c. together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities meet the floodproofing standards of 

Article VI.I.1.a., b., and c. 
 
J. Manufactured Homes  -  New or substantially improved manufactured homes located within: 
 
 1. Zone AE and AH shall: 
 
  a. be elevated such that the lowest floor (including basement) of the manufactured home is at 

least one foot above the base flood elevation; 
 
  b. be on a permanent foundation, which may be poured masonry slab or foundation walls, with 

hydraulic openings, or may be reinforced piers or block supports, any of which support the 
manufactured home so that no weight is supported by its wheels and axles; and, 

 
  c. be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, 

collapse, or lateral movement.  Methods of anchoring may include, but are not limited to: 
 
   (1) over-the-top ties anchored to the ground at the four corners of the manufactured home, 

plus two additional ties per side at intermediate points (manufactured homes less than 
50 feet long require one additional tie per side); or by, 

 
   (2) frame ties at each corner of the home, plus five additional ties along each side at 

intermediate points (manufactured homes less than 50 feet long require four additional 
ties per side). 

 
(2) All components of the anchoring system described in Article VI.J.1.c.(1) & (2) shall be 

capable of carrying a force of 4800 pounds. 
 
 2. Zones AH shall have adequate drainage paths around structures on slopes, to guide floodwater 

away from the proposed structures. 
 
 3. Zone A shall: 
 

a. be elevated on a permanent foundation, as described in Article VI.J.1.b., such that the lowest 
floor (including basement) of the manufactured home is at least one foot above the base 
flood elevation utilizing information obtained pursuant to Article III.H.1.b.(1); Article V.B.; 
Article VIII.D.; or,  

 
b. in the absence of all data as described in Article VI.J.3.a., to at least two feet above the 

highest adjacent grade to the structure; and, 
 

c. meet the anchoring requirements of Article VI.J.1.c. 
 

DRA
FT



11 

K. Recreational Vehicles  -  Recreational Vehicles located within: 
 
 1. Zones A, AE, and AH shall either: 
 
  a. be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; and,  
 
  b. be fully licensed and ready for highway use.  A recreational vehicle is ready for highway use 

if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type 
utilities and security devices, and has no permanently attached additions; or, 

 
  c. be permitted in accordance with the elevation and anchoring requirements for "manufactured 

homes" in Article VI.J.1. 
 
L. Accessory Structures  -  New construction or substantial improvement of Accessory Structures, as 

defined in Article XIII, shall be exempt from the elevation criteria required in Article VI.H. & I. 

above, if all other requirements of Article VI and all the following requirements are met. 

 

  1. Accessory Structures located in Zones A, AE, and AH shall: 

 

   a. meet the requirements of Article VI.A.1. through 4., as applicable; 

 

c. be limited in size to a one-story two car garage; 

 

   c. have unfinished interiors and not be used for human habitation; 

 

d. have only ground fault interrupt electrical outlets.  The electric service disconnect shall be 

located above the base flood elevation and, when possible, outside the Special Flood Hazard 

Area. 

 

   e. be located outside the floodway; 

 

f. when possible, be constructed and placed on the building site so as to offer the minimum 

resistance to the flow of floodwaters and be placed further from the source of flooding than 

is the primary structure; and, 

 
g. have hydraulic openings, as specified in Article VI.N.2., in at least two different walls of the 

accessory structure. 
 
M. Floodways  - 
 
 1. In Zone AE riverine areas, encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial 

improvement, and other development shall not be permitted within a regulatory floodway which 
is designated on the community's Flood Insurance Rate Map, unless a technical evaluation 
certified by a registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that such 
encroachments will not result in any increase in flood levels within the community during the 
occurrence of the base flood discharge.  

 
 2. In Zones A and AE riverine areas for which no regulatory floodway is designated, 

encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvement, and other 
development shall not be permitted in the floodway as determined in Article VI.M.3. unless a 
technical evaluation certified by a registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating 

DRA
FT



12 

that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing 
development and anticipated development: 

a. will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one foot at any
point within the community; and,

d. is consistent with the technical criteria contained in FEMA’s guidelines and standards for
flood risk analysis and mapping.

3. In Zones A and AE riverine areas, for which no regulatory floodway is designated, the regulatory
floodway is determined to be the channel of the river or other water course and the adjacent land
areas to a distance of one-half the width of the floodplain as measured from the normal high
water mark to the upland limit of the floodplain.

N. Hydraulic Openings/Flood Vents  -  New construction or substantial improvement of any structure
in Zones A, AE, and AH, that meets the development standards of Article VI, including the elevation
requirements of Article VI, paragraphs H., I., or J. and is elevated on posts, columns, piers, piles, or
crawlspaces may be enclosed below the base flood elevation requirements provided all the following
criteria are met or exceeded:

1. Enclosed areas are not "basements" as defined in Article XIII;

2. Enclosed areas shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior
walls by allowing for the entry and exit of flood water.  Designs for meeting this requirement
must either:

a. be engineered and certified by a registered professional engineer or architect; or,

b. meet or exceed the following minimum criteria:

(1) a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch for
every square foot of the enclosed area;

(2) the bottom of all openings shall be below the base flood elevation and no higher than
one foot above the lowest grade; and,

(3) openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or devices
provided that they permit the entry and exit of flood waters automatically without any
external influence or control such as human intervention, including the use of electrical
and other non-automatic mechanical means;

3. The enclosed area shall not be used for human habitation; and,

4. The enclosed areas are usable solely for building access, parking of vehicles, or storage.

O. Bridges  -  New construction or substantial improvement of any bridge in Zones A, AE, and AH shall

be designed such that:

1. when possible, the lowest horizontal member (excluding the pilings or columns) is elevated to at

least one foot above the base flood elevation; and,

2. a registered professional engineer shall certify that:

DRA
FT



13 

a. the structural design and methods of construction shall meet the elevation requirements of

this section and the floodway standards of Article VI.M.; and,

b. the foundation and superstructure attached thereto are designed to resist flotation, collapse,

and lateral movement due to the effects of wind and water loads acting simultaneously on all

structural components.  Water loading values used shall be those associated with the base

flood.

P. Containment Walls - New construction or substantial improvement of any containment wall located

within:

1. Zones A, AE, and AH shall:

a. have the containment wall elevated to at least one foot above the base flood elevation;

b. have structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and the
effects of buoyancy; and,

c. be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect that the design and methods of
construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice for meeting the
provisions of this section.  Such certification shall be provided with the application for a
Flood Hazard Development Permit, as required by Article III.K.

2. Zones AH shall have adequate drainage paths around containment walls on slopes, to guide
floodwater away from the proposed walls.

Q. Wharves, Piers, and Docks  -  New construction or substantial improvement of wharves, piers, and
docks are permitted in Zones A, AE, and AH, in and over water, and shall comply with all applicable
local, state, and federal regulations.

ARTICLE VII - CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 

No land in a special flood hazard area shall be occupied or used and no structure which is constructed or 
substantially improved shall be occupied until a Certificate of Compliance is issued by the Code 
Enforcement Officer subject to the following provisions: 

A. For New Construction or Substantial Improvement of any elevated structure the applicant shall
submit to the Code Enforcement Officer an Elevation Certificate completed by a Professional Land
Surveyor for compliance with Article VI, paragraphs H., I., or J.

B. The applicant shall submit written notification to the Code Enforcement Officer that the development
is complete and complies with the provisions of this ordinance.

C. Within 10 working days, the Code Enforcement Officer shall:

1. review the Elevation Certificate and the applicant’s written notification; and,

2. upon determination that the development conforms with the provisions of this ordinance, shall
issue a Certificate of Compliance.

ARTICLE VIII - REVIEW OF SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS 

DRA
FT



14 

The Planning Board shall, when reviewing subdivisions and other proposed developments that require 
review under other federal law, state law, or local ordinances or regulations, and all projects on 5 or more 
disturbed acres, or in the case of manufactured home parks divided into two or more lots, assure that: 

A. All such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.

B. All public utilities and facilities, such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems are located and
constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damages.

C. Adequate drainage is provided so as to reduce exposure to flood hazards.

D. All proposals include base flood elevations, flood boundaries, and, in a riverine floodplain, floodway
data.  These determinations shall be based on engineering practices recognized by the Federal
Emergency Management Agency.

E. Any proposed development plan must include a condition of plan approval requiring that structures
on any lot in the development having any portion of its land within a Special Flood Hazard Area are
to be constructed in accordance with Article VI of this ordinance.  Such requirement will be included
in any deed, lease, purchase and sale agreement, or document transferring or expressing an intent to
transfer any interest in real estate or structure, including but not limited to a time-share interest.  The
condition shall clearly articulate that the municipality may enforce any violation of the construction
requirement and that fact shall also be included in the deed or any other document previously
described.  The construction requirement shall also be clearly stated on any map, plat, or plan to be
signed by the Planning Board or local reviewing authority as part of the approval process.

ARTICLE IX - APPEALS AND VARIANCES 

The Board of Appeals of the Town of Lyman may, upon written application of an aggrieved party, hear 
and decide appeals where it is alleged that there is an error in any order, requirement, decision, or 
determination made by, or failure to act by, the Code Enforcement Officer or Planning Board in the 
administration or enforcement of the provisions of this Ordinance. 

The Board of Appeals may grant a variance from the requirements of this Ordinance consistent with state 
law and the following criteria: 

A. Variances shall not be granted within any designated regulatory floodway if any increase in flood
levels during the base flood discharge would result.

B. Variances shall be granted only upon:

1. a showing of good and sufficient cause; and,

2. a determination that should a flood comparable to the base flood occur, the granting of a variance
will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, public expense, or
create nuisances, cause fraud or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or
ordinances; and,

3. a showing that the issuance of the variance will not conflict with other state, federal, or local
laws or ordinances; and,

4. a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in "undue hardship," which in this
sub-section means:

DRA
FT



15 

a. that the land in question cannot yield a reasonable return unless a variance is granted; and,

b. that the need for a variance is due to the unique circumstances of the property and not to the
general conditions in the neighborhood; and,

c. that the granting of a variance will not alter the essential character of the locality; and,

d. that the hardship is not the result of action taken by the applicant or a prior owner.

C. Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary,
considering the flood hazard, to afford relief, and the Board of Appeals may impose such conditions
to a variance as it deems necessary.

D. Variances may be issued for new construction, substantial improvements, or other development for
the conduct of a functionally dependent use provided that:

1. the criteria of Article IX.A. through C. and Article VI.M. are met; and,

2. the structure or other development is protected by methods that minimize flood damages during
the base flood and create no additional threats to public safety.

E. Variances may be issued for the repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or restoration of Historic
Structures upon the determination that:

1. the development meets the criteria of Article IX.A. through C.; and,

2. the proposed repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or restoration will not preclude the structure’s
continued designation as a Historic Structure and the variance is the minimum necessary to
preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

F. Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvement of Agricultural

Structures being used for the conduct of agricultural uses provided that:

1. the development meets the criteria of Article IX.A. through C.; and,

2. the development meets the criteria of Article VI.M. and Article VI.N.

G. Any applicant who meets the criteria of Article IX.A. through C. and Article IX.D., E., or F. shall be
notified by the Board of Appeals in writing over the signature of the Chairman of the Board of
Appeals that:

1. the issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the base flood level will result in greatly
increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts as high as $25 per $100 of insurance
coverage; and,

2. such construction below the base flood level increases risks to life and property; and,

3. the applicant agrees in writing that the applicant is fully aware of all the risks inherent in the use
of land subject to flooding, assumes those risks, and agrees to indemnify and defend the
municipality against any claims filed against it that are related to the applicant's decision to use
land located in a floodplain and that the applicant individually releases the municipality from any

DRA
FT



16 

claims the applicant may have against the municipality that are related to the use of land located 
in a floodplain. 

H. Appeal Procedure for Administrative and Variance Appeals

1. An administrative or variance appeal may be taken to the Board of Appeals by an aggrieved
party within thirty days after receipt of a written decision of the Code Enforcement Officer or
Planning Board.

2. Upon being notified of an appeal, the Code Enforcement Officer or Planning Board, as
appropriate, shall transmit to the Board of Appeals all of the documents constituting the record of
the decision appealed from.

3. The Board of Appeals shall hold a public hearing on the appeal within thirty-five days of its
receipt of an appeal request.

4. The person filing the appeal shall have the burden of proof.

5. The Board of Appeals shall decide all appeals within thirty-five days after the close of the
hearing and shall issue a written decision on all appeals.

6. The Board of Appeals shall submit to the Code Enforcement Officer a report of all variance
actions, including justification for the granting of the variance and an authorization for the Code
Enforcement Officer to issue a Flood Hazard Development Permit, which includes any
conditions to be attached to said permit.

7. Any aggrieved party who participated as a party during the proceedings before the Board of
Appeals may take an appeal to Superior Court in accordance with State laws within forty-five
days from the date of any decision of the Board of Appeals.

ARTICLE X - ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES 

A. It shall be the duty of the Code Enforcement Officer to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance
pursuant to Title 30-A MRSA § 4452.

B. The penalties contained in Title 30-A MRSA § 4452 shall apply to any violation of this Ordinance.

C. In addition to any other actions, the Code Enforcement Officer, upon determination that a violation
exists, may submit a declaration to the Administrator of the Federal Insurance Administration
requesting a denial of flood insurance.  The valid declaration shall consist of:

1. the name of the property owner and address or legal description of the property sufficient to
confirm its identity or location;

2. a clear and unequivocal declaration that the property is in violation of a cited State or local law,
regulation, or ordinance;

3. a clear statement that the public body making the declaration has authority to do so and a citation
to that authority;

4. evidence that the property owner has been provided notice of the violation and the prospective
denial of insurance; and,

DRA
FT



17 

5. a clear statement that the declaration is being submitted pursuant to Section 1316 of the National
Flood Insurance Act of 1968, as amended.

ARTICLE XI - VALIDITY AND SEVERABILITY 

If any section or provision of this Ordinance is declared by the courts to be invalid, such decision shall not 
invalidate any other section or provision of this Ordinance. 

ARTICLE XII - CONFLICT WITH OTHER ORDINANCES 

This Ordinance shall not in any way impair or remove the necessity of compliance with any other 
applicable rule, ordinance, regulation, bylaw, permit, or provision of law.  Where this Ordinance imposes 
a greater restriction upon the use of land, buildings, or structures, the provisions of this Ordinance shall 
control. 

ARTICLE XIII - DEFINITIONS 

Unless specifically defined below, words and phrases used in this Ordinance shall have the same meaning 
as they have at common law and to give this Ordinance its most reasonable application.  Words used in 
the present tense include the future, the singular number includes the plural, and the plural number 
includes the singular.  The word "may" is permissive; "shall" is mandatory and not discretionary.  

Accessory Structure - a structure which is on the same parcel of property as a principal structure and the 

use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure. 

Adjacent Grade - the natural elevation of the ground surface prior to construction next to the proposed 
walls of a structure.  

Agricultural Structure - structures that are used exclusively for agricultural purposes or uses in 
connection with the production, harvesting, storage, raising, or drying of agricultural commodities and 
livestock. Structures that house tools or equipment used in connection with these purposes or uses are also 
considered to have agricultural purposes or uses. 

Area of Special Flood Hazard - the land in the floodplain having a one percent or greater chance of 
flooding in any given year, as specifically identified in the Flood Insurance Study cited in Article I of this 
Ordinance.  

Base Flood - a flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year, 
commonly called the 100-year flood.  

Basement - any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides. 

Building - see Structure. 

Certificate of Compliance - A document signed by the Code Enforcement Officer stating that a structure 
is in compliance with all of the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Code Enforcement Officer - A person certified under Title 30-A MRSA, Section 4451 (including 
exceptions in subsection 4451, paragraph 1) and employed by a municipality to enforce all applicable 
comprehensive planning and land use laws and ordinances. 

Containment Wall - a wall surrounding all sides of an above ground tank to contain any spills or leaks. 

DRA
FT



18 

Development - any man made change to improved or unimproved real estate.  This includes, but is not 
limited to, buildings or other structures; mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation, drilling 
operations or storage of equipment or materials; and the storage, deposition, or extraction of materials. 

Elevated Building - a non-basement building that is: 

a. built, in the case of a building in Zones A, AE, or AH, to have the top of the elevated floor elevated
above the ground level by means of pilings, columns, posts, piers, or shear walls; and,

b. adequately anchored so as not to impair the structural integrity of the building during a flood of up to
one foot above the magnitude of the base flood.

In the case of Zones A, AE, or AH, Elevated Building also includes a building elevated by means of fill 
or solid foundation perimeter walls with hydraulic openings sufficient to facilitate the unimpeded 
movement of flood waters, as required in Article VI.N. 

Elevation Certificate - an official form (FEMA Form FF-206-FY-22-152, as amended) that is used to 
verify compliance with the floodplain management regulations of the National Flood Insurance Program. 

Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision - a manufactured home park or subdivision that was 

recorded in the deed registry prior to the adoption date of the community’s first floodplain management 

regulations.  

Flood or Flooding - 

a. A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land areas from:

1. The overflow of inland or tidal waters.

2. The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.

b. The collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or other body of water as a result of
erosion or undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding anticipated cyclical levels or
suddenly caused by an unusually high water level in a natural body of water, accompanied by a
severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of nature, such as flash flood or an abnormal tidal surge, or
by some similarly unusual and unforeseeable event which results in flooding as defined in paragraph
a.1. of this definition.

Flood Elevation Study - an examination, evaluation, and determination of flood hazards and, if 
appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations.  

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) - an official map of a community, on which the Federal Insurance 
Administrator has delineated both the special hazard areas and the risk premium zones applicable to the 
community.  

Flood Insurance Study - see Flood Elevation Study. 

Floodplain or Flood-prone Area - any land area susceptible to being inundated by water from any 
source (see Flood or Flooding).  DRA

FT



19 

Floodplain Management - the operation of an overall program of corrective and preventive measures for 
reducing flood damage, including but not limited to emergency preparedness plans, flood control works, 
and floodplain management regulations.  

Floodplain Management Regulations - zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building codes, 
health regulations, special purpose ordinances (such as a floodplain ordinance, grading ordinance, and 
erosion control ordinance), and other applications of police power.  The term describes such state or local 
regulations, in any combination thereof, which provide standards for the purpose of flood damage 
prevention and reduction. 

Floodproofing - any combination of structural and non-structural additions, changes, or adjustments to 
structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real property, water and 
sanitary facilities, structures, and contents. 

Floodway - see Regulatory Floodway. 

Floodway Encroachment Lines - the lines marking the limits of floodways on federal, state, and local 
floodplain maps. 

Freeboard - a factor of safety usually expressed in feet above a flood level for purposes of floodplain 
management.  Freeboard tends to compensate for the many unknown factors, such as wave action, bridge 
openings, and the hydrological effect of urbanization of the watershed that could contribute to flood 
heights greater than the height calculated for a selected size flood and floodway conditions.  

Functionally Dependent Use - a use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is located or 
carried out in close proximity to water.  The term includes only docking facilities, port facilities that are 
necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship repair 
facilities, but does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing facilities. 

Historic Structure - any structure that is: 

a. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by the
Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the
requirements for individual listing on the National Register;

b. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the historical
significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by the Secretary of
the Interior to qualify as a registered historic district;

c. Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic preservation programs
which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or,

d. Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic preservation
programs that have been certified either:

1. By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior, or,

2. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs.

Locally Established Datum - for purposes of this ordinance, an elevation established for a specific site to 
which all other elevations at the site are referenced.  This elevation is generally not referenced to the 
National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD), North American Vertical Datum (NAVD), or any other 

DRA
FT



20 

established datum and is used in areas where Mean Sea Level data is too far from a specific site to be 
practically used.  

Lowest Floor - the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement).  An unfinished or flood 
resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or storage in an area other than 
a basement area is not considered a building's lowest floor, provided that such enclosure is not built so as 
to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-elevation design requirements described in 
Article VI.N. of this ordinance.  

Manufactured Home - a structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a permanent 
chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when connected to the required 
utilities.  For floodplain management purposes the term manufactured home also includes park trailers, 
travel trailers, and other similar vehicles placed on a site for greater than 180 consecutive days.  

Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision - a parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided into two or 
more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.  

Mean Sea Level - for purposes of the National Flood Insurance Program, the National Geodetic Vertical 
Datum (NGVD) of 1929, North American Vertical Datum (NAVD), or other datum to which base flood 
elevations shown on a community's Flood Insurance Rate Map are referenced. 

Minor Development - all development that is not new construction or a substantial improvement, such as 
repairs, maintenance, renovations, or additions, whose value is less than 50% of the market value of the 
structure.  It also includes but is not limited to: accessory structures as provided for in Article VI.L., 
mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation, drilling operations, storage of equipment or 
materials, deposition or extraction of materials, public or private sewage disposal systems or water supply 
facilities that do not involve structures; and non-structural projects such as bridges, dams, towers, fencing, 
pipelines, wharves, and piers. 

National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) - the national vertical datum, whose standard was 
established in 1929, which is used by the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).  NGVD was based 
upon mean sea level in 1929 and has been called “1929 Mean Sea Level (MSL)”. 

New Construction - structures for which the "start of construction" commenced on or after the effective 
date of the initial floodplain management regulations adopted by a community and includes any 
subsequent improvements to such structures. 

North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) - the national datum whose standard was established in 1988, 
which is the new vertical datum used by the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) for all new Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps.  NAVD is based upon the vertical data used by other North American countries 
such as Canada and Mexico and was established to replace NGVD because of constant movement of the 
earth’s crust, glacial rebound and subsidence, and the increasing use of satellite technology. 

100-year flood - see Base Flood.

Recreational Vehicle - a vehicle which is: 

a. built on a single chassis;

b. 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, not including slideouts;

c. designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a motor vehicle; and,

DRA
FT



21 

d. designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters for
recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.

Regulatory Floodway - 

a. the channel of a river or other water course and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order
to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than a
designated height, and,

b. when not designated on the community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map, it is considered to be the
channel of a river or other water course and the adjacent land areas to a distance of one-half the width
of the floodplain, as measured from the normal high water mark to the upland limit of the floodplain.

Riverine - relating to, formed by, or resembling a river (including tributaries), stream, brook, etc. 

Special Flood Hazard Area - see Area of Special Flood Hazard. 

Start of Construction - the date the building permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, 
repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, substantial improvement, or other improvement 
was within 180 days of the permit date.  The actual start means either the first placement of permanent 
construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the 
construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured 
home on a foundation.  Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, 
grading, and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include 
excavation for basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it 
include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as 
dwelling units or not part of the main structure.  For a substantial improvement, the actual start of 
construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, or 
modification of any construction element, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of 
the building. 

Structure - for floodplain management purposes, a walled and roofed building.  A gas or liquid storage 
tank that is principally above ground is also a structure.  

Substantial Damage - damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring the 
structure to its before damage condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the market value of the 
structure before the damage occurred. 

Substantial Improvement - any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement of a 
structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the structure before the 
start of construction of the improvement.  This term includes structures which have incurred substantial 
damage, regardless of the actual repair work performed.  The term does not, however, include either: 

a. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local health,
sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement
official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions; or,

b. Any alteration of a Historic Structure, provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's
continued designation as a historic structure, and a variance is obtained from the community’s Board
of Appeals.

Variance - a grant of relief by a community from the terms of a floodplain management regulation. 

DRA
FT



22 

Violation - the failure of a structure or development to comply with a community's floodplain 
management regulations. 

ARTICLE XIV - ABROGATION 

This ordinance repeals and replaces any municipal ordinance previously enacted to comply with the 
National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 (P.L. 90-488, as amended). 

ARTICLE XV - DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY 

The degree of flood protection required by the ordinance is considered reasonable but does not imply total 
flood protection. 

DRA
FT



Tr
an

sf
er

 S
ta

tio
n 

C
am

er
as

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t C
os

t p
ro

po
sa

l

O
pt

io
n 

1
O

pt
io

n 
2

O
ffi

ce
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
O

ffi
ce

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

En
cl

os
ed

 R
ac

k 
C

ab
in

et
 6

U
$1

50
.0

0
En

cl
os

ed
 R

ac
k 

C
ab

in
et

 6
U

$1
50

.0
0

15
00

VA
 U

PS
 (D

es
kt

op
)

$2
20

.0
0

15
00

VA
 U

PS
 (D

es
kt

op
)

$2
20

.0
0

Ri
ut

er
 (o

ffi
ce

)
$5

00
.0

0
Ri

ut
er

 (o
ffi

ce
)

$5
00

.0
0

N
VR

 H
ar

d 
D

riv
e 

- X
1 

($
18

0/
ea

)
$1

80
.0

0
N

VR
 H

ar
d 

D
riv

e 
- X

3 
($

18
0/

ea
)

$5
40

.0
0

12
 P

or
t P

at
ch

 P
an

el
 (o

ffi
ce

)
$2

5.
00

12
 P

or
t P

at
ch

 P
an

el
 (o

ffi
ce

)
$2

5.
00

Li
ne

 S
ur

ge
 P

ro
te

ct
or

s 
(C

am
er

a/
 B

rid
ge

) x
5

$7
5.

00
Li

ne
 S

ur
ge

 P
ro

te
ct

or
s 

(C
am

er
a/

 B
rid

ge
) x

6
$9

0.
00

W
iF

i B
rid

ge
 : 

60
gh

z 1
.3

km
 W

av
e 

Pi
co

 B
rid

ge
 x2

 (1
80

/e
a)

$3
60

.0
0

W
iF

i B
rid

ge
 : 

60
gh

z 1
.3

km
 W

av
e 

Pi
co

 B
rid

ge
 x2

 (1
80

/e
a)

$3
60

.0
0

G
en

 5
 U

ltr
a 

C
am

er
a 

(O
ffi

ce
) x

1 
($

13
0/

ea
)

$1
30

.0
0

G
en

 5
 U

ltr
a 

C
am

er
a 

(O
ffi

ce
) x

2 
($

13
0/

ea
)

$2
60

.0
0

U
7 

Pr
o 

Ac
ce

ss
 P

oi
nt

 x1
$1

80
.0

0
U

7 
Pr

o 
Ac

ce
ss

 P
oi

nt
 x1

$1
80

.0
0

Pa
tc

h 
C

ab
le

s 
/ M

is
c 

C
on

ne
ct

or
s 

/ F
as

te
ne

rs
$5

0.
00

Pa
tc

h 
C

ab
le

s 
/ M

is
c 

C
on

ne
ct

or
s 

/ F
as

te
ne

rs
$1

00
.0

0
U

N
VR

 D
ev

ic
e

$3
00

.0
0

C
am

er
a 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t (
Po

le
 / 

G
ar

ag
e)

C
am

er
a 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t (
Po

le
 / 

G
ar

ag
e)

C
am

er
as

 x1
 ($

38
0/

ea
)

$3
80

.0
0

C
am

er
as

 x3
 ($

38
0/

ea
)

$1
,1

40
.0

0
15

00
VA

 U
PS

 (D
es

kt
op

) (
G

ar
ag

e)
$2

20
.0

0
15

00
VA

 U
PS

 (D
es

kt
op

) (
G

ar
ag

e)
$2

20
.0

0
12

 P
or

t P
at

ch
 P

an
el

 (G
ar

ag
e)

$2
0.

00
12

 P
or

t P
at

ch
 P

an
el

 (G
ar

ag
e)

$2
0.

00
Fl

ex
 U

til
ity

 E
nc

lo
su

re
 (P

ol
e)

$5
0.

00
Fl

ex
 U

til
ity

 E
nc

lo
su

re
 (P

ol
e)

$5
0.

00
Fl

ex
 S

w
itc

h 
(P

ol
e)

$1
00

.0
0

Fl
ex

 S
w

itc
h 

(P
ol

e)
$1

00
.0

0
Fl

ex
 S

w
itc

h 
U

ltr
a 

60
w

 (G
ar

ag
e)

$1
60

.0
0

Fl
ex

 S
w

itc
h 

U
ltr

a 
60

w
 (G

ar
ag

e)
$1

60
.0

0
J M

as
ts

 x 
2 

$5
0/

ea
$1

00
.0

0

Eq
ui

pm
en

t E
st

im
at

es
 - 

To
ta

l
$2

,8
00

.0
0

Eq
ui

pm
en

t E
st

im
at

es
 - 

To
ta

l
$4

,5
15

.0
0

G
ro

un
d 

or
 A

er
ia

l W
or

k 
(O

ut
so

ur
ce

d)
 +

/-
$6

00
.0

0
G

ro
un

d 
or

 A
er

ia
l W

or
k 

(O
ut

so
ur

ce
d)

 +
/-

$6
00

.0
0

(A
er

ia
l r

un
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

po
le

 to
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
$4

00
-$

60
0 

ap
pr

ox
)

(A
er

ia
l r

un
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

po
le

 to
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
$4

00
-$

60
0 

ap
pr

ox
)

Su
b 

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

t
$3

,4
00

.0
0

Su
b 

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

t
$5

,1
15

.0
0

Le
ss

 G
ra

nt
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t
$2

,8
80

.0
0

Le
ss

 G
ra

nt
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t
$2

,8
80

.0
0

To
ta

l C
os

t /
 T

ow
n 

Ex
pe

ns
es

$5
20

.0
0

To
ta

l C
os

t /
 T

ow
n 

Ex
pe

ns
es

$2
,2

35
.0

0

Be
an

 D
at

a 
- S

er
vi

ce
 &

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 (M
SP

 C
on

tr
ac

t)
 (+

/-
) 

$2
50

 - 
$3

00
 /m

o
Be

an
 D

at
a 

- S
er

vi
ce

 &
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 (M

SP
 C

on
tr

ac
t)

 (+
/-

) 
$3

50
 - 

$4
00

 /m
o

In
cl

ud
es

 2
 c

am
er

as
 a

nd
 in

iti
al

 n
et

w
or

k 
se

tu
p 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t
In

cl
ud

es
 5

 c
am

er
as

 a
nd

 in
iti

al
 n

et
w

or
k 

se
tu

p 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t

ITEM #7: (c.) Transfer Station - Proposal for Cameras



O
PT

IO
N

 1

Lindsay Gagne
Stamp



O
PT

IO
N

 2

Lindsay Gagne
Stamp



Annual Town Meeting Survey

Question 1 has 74 answers (Radio Buttons)

“What age group are you in?”

18-29

0 (0.0%)

30-39

7 (9.5%)

40-49

11 (14.9%)

50-59

10 (13.5%)

60+

46 (62.2%)

Question 2 has 74 answers (Range) Avg rating: 6.0

“How likely are you to attend an Annual Town Meeting?”

Question 3 has 74 answers (Radio Buttons)

“Would you prefer attending a Town Meeting on a
Weekday or a Weekend?”

Weekday

47 (63.5%)

Weekend

27 (36.5%)

All Responses Question 1: What age group are you in? Question 2: How likely are you to attend an Annual Town Meeting?Question 3: Would you prefer attending a TowQues

100%

75%

50%

25%

0%
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Fe
ed
ba
ck

ITEM #7: (e.) Annual Town Meeting 
Survey Results

Lindsay Gagne
Pencil

Lindsay Gagne
Pencil



Sunday

1 (1.4%)

Monday

1 (1.4%)

Tuesday

11 (14.9%)

Wednesday

19 (25.7%)

Thursday

12 (16.2%)

Friday
4 (5.4%)

Question 5 has 74 answers (Radio Buttons)

“What time frame of day would you most prefer to attend
Town Meeting?”

Early starting between 8am - 10am

11 (14.9%)

Mid Day starting between 11am - 1pm

13 (17.6%)

Afternoon starting between 2pm - 4pm

7 (9.5%)

Evening starting between 5pm - 7pm

43 (58.1%)

Fe
ed
ba
ck

26 (35.1%)

Question 4 has 74 answers (Radio Buttons)

“What day of the week would you most prefer to attend
Town Meeting”

Saturday

Lindsay Gagne
Line

Lindsay Gagne
Line

Lindsay Gagne
Line



"You want people to attend. Have some drawings at the end of the 
meeting. Maybe a free car registration, or free dog or transfer 
station pass. Think outside the box. It may help more people to 
become involved."

"The day of the week and the time of day really does not matter, 
thank you."

"Get a new moderator! The one the town has used for years is 
biased."

"The way things are.done are �ine now.As you all see the only time 
people show up is to have a melt down.Keep up your good work 
and you all are appreciated thank you"

"and I'm also �ine with the town meeting on a weekend, but didn't 
have that as an option"

"It would be nice to have a potluck hour before the meeting. If 
someone wants to participate they bring a dish to share and if not 
they just show up for the meeting. I think it would be nice to visit 
with neighbors before so we all remember we're friends during the 
meeting. It would be nice to have activities set up and a kids area, 
away from the meeting for thise who have children but still want to 
participate. "

Fe
ed
ba
ck

"The current platform in which the town holds the annual meetings 
is very out dated and makes it very di�icult if not impossible for 
both parents of kids within the town to attend limiting a voters 
voice due to their obligations to their family. Also Having a meeting 
during a week night when work typically goes till 5 or starts the 
next morning at 6:30 is also not feasible especially when the 
meetings run 3 hours long.

To solve this issue I believe the town should adopt a remote 
participation policy for the annual town meeting. Therefore people 
can weigh in and participate while also being able to complete their 
obligations as a parent or professional. Pertaining to the voting 
portion, I believe it should either be done via ballot which would 
follow the meeting on a separate day or the town should 
investigate how individuals can vote remotely in a secure way 
during the meeting.

With approximately 4500 people living in Lyman I do not believe it 
to be ethically correct or right for the town to allow so many crucial 
items to be voted on by only 60 or 70 individuals. Especially if the 
reason for certain individuals not attending is out of their control 
such as family and work obligations. Therefore a change is 
Necessary if not required so that the towns true voice can be heard.

With all this said I voted 2 for my likelihood of attending a meeting 
in person due to my obligations at home but if remote participation 
was allowed I would change my vote to a 9.

Thank you for your time. "

"The current way the town holds in person annual meeting /voting 
does not allow for both parents in a household to be present and 
have their voices heard. The voting should not occur live as it does 
not allow for all taxpayers
(male and female) to have a voice equally. "

"If it's during the weekday perhaps an evening time is best. If on a 
weekend, then the morning is best, so it doesn't cut into the day. 
We used to have them on Saturdays at 1:00 and we had very few 
people show up. Thursday evenings seem to work except for 
second shift workers, however we certainly cannot meet everyone's 
schedule."

"I think keeping the town meeting during the week is best as most 
weekends people have plans that may include leaving town. Also 
advertising the town meeting more may help attendance - explain 
that it is how they can participate in how their taxes dollars are 
spent. "

"Please explore a new moderator. The current moderator has 
proven to be very biased "

"To many graduations and weddings on the weekends in June. 
That's why it was changed. Stick to week night."

“Provide any other feedback you feel would be helpful. ”

Question 6 has 12 answers (Open Text)



Estimate
Date

5/17/2024

Estimate #

2122

Name / Address

Town Of Lyman
11 South Waterboro Rd
Lyman, Me04002

Bob Duling

74 Munnick Point Rd
ME 04002

Project

Total

Description Qty Rate Total

1 7 ft counter 180.00 180.00
1 2 ft couter 109.00 109.00
 trim 40.00 40.00
Labor 520.00 520.00

$849.00

ITEM #7: (f.) Bunganut Ticket Booth Quote




